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Notes: 
 
(i) Shareholders are advised to promptly notify any change in their addresses. 

 
(ii) Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 25, 2022 to November 01,    

2022 (both days inclusive). 
 

(iii)
 

A member eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is
 
entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend, and vote for him/her.
 
Proxies must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not 

less than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.
 

 
CDC Account Holders will have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 
26, 2000. Issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. In case of corporate entity, 
the Board’s resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be furnished with proxy form 
to the Company.

 
 (iv)

 
The shareholders who wish to attend the AGM through video link are requested to get themselves 
registered by providing the following information via email at secretary@idreestextile.com

 
on or 

before October 24,
 
2022.

 
 Name of                               

CNIC #          Cell Number         Email Address 
     

CDC Account No./    
            /Folio No. 

 

 Shareholders can also provide their comments/suggestions on the proposed agenda items of the 
AGM on above email address.

 
 Members shall be registered after necessary verification and will be provided a video link and login 
credentials by the Company on the same email address from which they,

 
emailed to the Company. 

The login facility will remain open
 
from 03:20

 
pm

 
till the end of  the meeting.

 
  

Notice is hereby given that the 33rd  Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of  Idrees Textile Mills Ltd. 
will be held on Thursday, October 27, 2022 at 03:30 pm at Hotel Mehran, Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi, to 
transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1.
 

To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2021.
 

2. To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended June 30, 2022 together with Chairman’s Review, Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.  

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending on June 30, 2023 and fix their remuneration. 
The retiring auditors M/s Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants , being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

 
4. To transact any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the 

Chairman. 
 

         By order of the Board 
Karachi 
Dated :  October 05, 2022     

 
       SYED SHAHID SULTAN  

       

 
 Company Secretary  

Shareholder
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(v) Members are requested to provide their International Banking Account Number (IBAN) together with 
a copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to update our records. In case of non-
submission all future dividend payments may be withheld. 
 

(vi) As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every Company is required to replace its physical 
shares with book entry form within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the 
Companies Act, 2017  i.e May 30, 2017. 
 
The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its circular # CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-
640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised the listed Companies to pursue their such members who still 
hold shares in physical form, to convert their shares into book-entry form. 
 
 The shareholder having physical shareholding are accordingly encouraged to open their account 
with Investor Accounts Services of CDC or sub-account with any of the brokers and convert their 
physical shares  into scrip less form. This will facilitate the shareholders in many ways, including 
safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not 
permitted as per existing regulation of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 

 
(vii) Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 143 to 

Section 145 of the Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of the Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Regulation, 2018. 
 

(viii) In terms of the Companies Act, 2017, members residing in a city holding at least 10% of the total 
paid up share capital may demand the facility of video-link for participating in the annual general 
meeting.  
 
If you wish to take this facility, please fill the form appearing below and submit it to the Company at 
its registered address at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the Meeting. 
 
The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days 
before the date of meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access 
such facility. 
 
I/We ____________________________ of _________________email address __________, being 
a member of Idrees Textile Mills Ltd. holder of ____________ Ordinary Share(s) as per Register 
Folio No. /CDC Account No. ________________ hereby opt for video conference facility at 
_______________________. 
 

(ix) In pursuance to the direction given by SECP, those shareholders who desire to receive Annual 
Financial Statements in future through email instead of receiving the same by post are advise to give 
their formal consent along with their valid email address on a standard request form which is 
available at the Company website (idreestextile.com) and send the said form duly signed by the 
shareholder to the Company’s Share Registrar. 
 

(x) Shareholders who have not yet collected their dividend/physical shares are advised to contact our 
Share Registrar to collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend or shares. Please note that in 
compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated 
procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three (3) years from the date due and payable 
shall be deposited to the credit of the Federal Government and in case of Shares, shall be delivered 
to the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The Directors are pleased to present the audited financial statements of your Company for the year 

ended June 30, 2022. 

 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW 

 

The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, processing and sale of yarn. During the year 

under review, there has not been any material change in the Company’s business activities. 

 

During the year, the company acquired 100% ownership of ORA Home LLC (ORA), a limited liability

company incorporated  in new Jersey, USA on January 5, 2022. One of Directors of the company is

the member manager of ORA. Pursuant to the acquisition, ORA has become wholly owned subsidiary

of the company.

 

 

 

During the financial year under review, the Company’s turnover amounted to Rs. 5,166.2 

million as compared to Rs. 4,002.5 million in the previous year. Gross profit amounted to Rs. 

798.5 million compared to Rs. 533.8 million for the last year. By the grace of Allah, the Company’s 

revenue has increased by Rs. 1,163.7  million (29 percent) and the gross profit has increased by Rs. 

264.7 million (49.5 percent). The Company’s profit after tax amounted to Rs. 432.0 million in FY22 as 

compared to profit of Rs.159.8  million in the corresponding period showing a sizable increase of 170.34  

percent. 
 

Post-COVID-19 economic recovery, particularly in Pakistan, contributed to significant increase in 

volumes and gross margins of the textile industry resulting in healthy bottom line for your Company. 

Despite enormous increase in the discount rate by the State Bank of Pakistan during the financial year 

2021-22, the Company has been able to make good profit for the year under review. The discount rate 

which stood at 7 percent at the beginning of FY22 was gradually raised to 13.75 percent by the end of 

the financial year, showing an increase of 6.75 percent in a year. This is almost a two -fold increase in 

the cost of financing. Expansion in production capacity of the mill is underway. Capital outlay of the 

project is around Rupees 1.2 billion for which, in addition to own resources, the Company has availed 

State Bank of Pakistan’s financing schemes namely, Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) 

and Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF). Given the volatility in price of raw material and quality iss ues 

in local cotton, the management procured a mix of various varieties of imported cotton along with local 

cotton for cost optimization. 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 
The earnings per share for the year under review worked out to Rs 21.76 as compared to Rs. 8.05  for 
the corresponding year. 

 
DIVIDEND 
 

While the management is closely monitoring the volatility of Pak Rupee vs the US Dollar, soaring 
inflation, high interest rates and policy on regionally competitive energy tariff for the textile industry, 
the Company is committed to increase shareholder value. Expansion in the mill’s production capacity 
is underway and its contribution to the revenue is expected to start in FY23. 

 

In view of the foregoing, the Directors have not proposed dividend for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAME WORK 

 

(a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its 

state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 

 

 

 

(b) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained. 

 

(c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial 

statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

 

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 

preparation of the financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately 

disclosed. 

 
(e) The Board understands its responsibility to ensure that adequate and effective internal 

financial controls are in place. The internal audit department regularly reviews the design and 

effectiveness of the controls and corrective action is taken to address the weakness, if found. 
We believe that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented. 
 

(f) There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

 

(g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as 

detailed in the regulation of PSX rule book. 

 

(h) The book value of investments made by the Employees’ Provident Fund, being operated for 
head office employees, only, as per audited financial statements of the Fund as at June 30, 
2021 was Rs. 30,326,483/- (2020 Rs. 26,967,981/-) 

Mills employees are entitled to gratuity as per law and appropriate provision has been made 

in the financial statements. 

(i) As required by the Code, we have included the following information in this report: 

- Statement of Pattern of Shareholding. 

- Statement of Shares held by associated undertaking and related parties. 

- Key operating and financial statistics for last six years. 

 

(i)  During the year under review, four Board of Directors, four Audit Committee and one Human 
Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR & RC) meetings were held and attended as 
follows: 

  

Name of Directors 
B

Meeting Meeting Meeting
oard of Directors Audit Committee HR & RC 

Mr. Muhammad  Idrees Allawala 04 N/A N/A 

Mr. S.M. Mansoor Allawala 04 N/A N/A 

Ms. Azra yaqub Vawda 04 04 01 

Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala 04 04            01  

Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 04 N/A N/A 

Mr. Muhammad Israil 04 N/A N/A 

Syed Masud Arif 04 04 01 



(j) During the year under review, there has been no trading in shares of the Company by 
CEO, Directors and their Spouses & minor children except as given below 
 
NAME OF DIRECTOR Opening 

01-07-2021 
Purchase Gift In/(Gift 

out) 
Balance as 
on June, 
30. 2022 

Mr. S. M. Mansoor Allawala 7,569,595  (3,237,038) 4,332,557 
Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 
 

4,969,362 173,900 611,334 5,754,596 
 

Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala 
 

2,475,572 674,370 2,625,704 5,775,646 

 
 

  
(l)  We have an audit committee the members of which are from the board of directors and the 

chairman is a independent  director 
 

(m)  We have prepared and circulated a statement of ethics and business strategy amongst 
directors and employees. 

 

(n)  The board has adopted a mission statement and a statement of overall corporate strategy. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

The board comprises of seven directors. The composition of the board throughout the year is as 
follows: 

 

a. Male:  6     
b. Female:  1 

 
a) Independent Director             i.)  Syed Masud Arif 

ii)  Ms Azra Yaqub Vawda     
   

b) Non-executive Directors  i.    Mr. Muhammad Idrees Allawala 
ii)   Mr.Rizwan Idrees Allawala   

      iii)  Mr. Muhammad Israill 

 

c) Executive Directors  i)     Mr. S. M. Mansoor Allawala 
                                                    ii)    Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 
                                                   

BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

The Board of Directors has formed the Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee in line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.  

 

The members of Audit Committee is as follows: 

 

 Ms, Azra Yaqub Vaw da  Chairman 

 Syed Masud Arif   Member 

 Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala  Member 

7
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

The members of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

 

 Syed Masud Arif   Chairman 

 Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda   Member 

 Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala  Member  

 

CASUAL VACANCY 

 

Mr. Muhammad Israil, director of the Company passed away on August 21, 2022. The board 
expresses profound grief on his sad demise. May Allah rest his soul in eternal place and grant 
fortitude to the bereaved family to bear this loss. His services to the Company shall be 
remembered for a long time to come.  

 

The Casual vacancy, to created, shall be filled within 90 days as required under the law.  

 

 

BOARD EVALUATION  

 

The Company carries out annual evaluation of the Board, members of the Board and its 
Committees as part of the Code of Corporate Governance. For that purpose, Board has developed 
a mechanism for evaluation of Board’s own performance, members of the Board and its 
Committees. Based on the evaluation, overall performance of the Board, its members and 
Committees of the Board for the year under review is satisfactory. 

 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION : 

 

The company does not pay remuneration to its non-executive directors including independent 
directors except for meeting fee. Aggregate amount of remuneration paid to executive and non-
executive directors have been disclosed in note 35 of the annexed financial statements. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 
Idrees Textile Mills Ltd. being  a good corporate citizen contributing for the welfare of the people in our 

society and fulfillment of its corporate social responsibility. During the year under review the Company  

contributed Rs.4,382,000 to various organizations serving the mankind in the health and education 

sectors. 

 

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES  

 
The Board of Directors monitors the risks faced by the Company and takes mitigating measures to 

address/manage such risks. 

A number of risks are faced by the Company which include credit risks, liquidity risks, capital risks, 

price risks, business risks, compliance risks and currency risks (Note: 40 to the enclosed financial 

statements). Cotton Crop, USD/Rupee parity, interest rate, energy tariff, minimum wages, taxation 

measures are the areas which remain in focus of management and affect the financial results. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

During the year under review, we saw the economy recover from the adverse effects of Covid-19. 

However, the management remains vigilant and proactive to manage the risk that may arise due to 

emergence of vaccine-resistant variant of the various. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 
 

According to the United Nations estimates, about 3.6 million acres of our crop land has been destroyed 

in the recent floods, majority of the devastation being concentrated in Sindh. As a consequence, about 

thirty per cent of the national cotton crop has either been lost or has been badly affected. There are 

serious expectations of supply-side constraints in the aftermath of the floods. Resultantly, Pakistan is 

expected to meet the supply shortfall by importing cotton of around USD 2 billion. Moreover, the United 

States has downward revised the global output for FY23 by around 3 million bales in recent WASDE 

reports, with the output now expected at 117 million bales. Erosion in the value of Pak Rupee vs US 

Dollar must be controlled in order to restore viability of imported raw material for the spinning industry. 

  

With respect to the problems being faced by textile exporters with regard to getting approval from SBP 

for opening of letters of credit (L/Cs) for import of textile machinery and components, a mechanism 

should immediately be worked out to resolve the issue. For achieving the target of USD 50 billion in 

exports over the next 4 years, the textile sector requires adequate supply of energy at regionally 
competitive tariffs. Other setbacks like inflation, high markup rates and effects of Russia-Ukraine war 

are also required to be taken care of. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has indicated that it could 

ease its program conditions for Pakistan in the wake of massive devastation caused by floods with 

revised estimates putting losses to the tune of USD 30 billion. 

 

AUDITORS 
 

The retiring Auditors M/s. Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants being eligib le have offered 
themselves for re-appointment for the ensuing year 2022-2023.The audit committee in its meeting 
held on September 30, 2022 has recommended the appointment of the retiring auditors.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

The directors are thankful to the bankers, suppliers and customers of the Company for their 

continued support and appreciate the hard work by the employees of the Company. 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

                                        

 

 

 

Muhammad Idrees Allawala                                           S. M. Mansoor Allawala 

Chairman              Chief Executive  

Karachi: October  05 , 2022 
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

 

Muhammad Idrees Allawala

 

Chairman of the Board

 
 

Karachi

 

October 05, 2022
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COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF OPERATING RESULTS 
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UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at June 30, 2022

20

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

4 2,334,249,192    2,046,046,950    
3,129,361           2,887,987           

5 -                      -                      
2,337,378,553    2,048,934,937    

6          57,521,846          43,809,657 

7     1,207,120,704     1,090,119,992 

8        768,563,631        701,721,202 

9        171,739,107          83,520,710 

           1,905,463            1,871,858 

10        184,464,687        154,695,934 

11        134,473,034          97,094,620 

12            5,875,276            8,370,748 

    2,531,663,748     2,181,204,721 

4,869,042,301
    

4,230,139,658
    

220,000,000

       

220,000,000

       
13 198,528,000

       

198,528,000

       

14 882,490,524

       

910,719,758

       15,895,730

         

25,813,862

         1,420,418,461

    

951,551,923

       2,517,332,715

    

2,086,613,543

    

15 214,521,468

       

169,100,200

       
16 1,962,284

           

10,140,260

         
17 44,261,234

         

-

                      
18 229,182,802

       

252,700,211

       
19 60,143,460

         

54,932,453

         
550,071,248

       

486,873,124

       

  
20 607,349,650

       

236,390,906

       
21 26,323,596

         

21,575,812

         

22 883,049,126

       

1,215,020,482

    

15 143,862,034

       

105,354,182

       

16 7,767,062

           

19,268,069

         

17 5,297,394

           

-

                      

2,899,903

           

2,424,885

           

125,089,573

       

56,618,655

         

1,801,638,338

    

1,656,652,991

    

2,351,709,586

    

2,143,526,115

    

4,869,042,301

    

4,230,139,658

    
23

ASSETS

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 

Long-term deposits

Long term investment

Current Assets

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Prepayments

Other receivables

Other financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorised capital

22,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Capital reserves

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax

Equity portion of loan from related parties

Revenue reserves

Total Equity

Non-current Liabilities

Long-term finance

Lease liability

Deferred government grant

Deferred taxation - net

Retirement benefit obligation

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

Short-term borrowings

Current portion of long-term finance

Current portion of lease liability

Current portion of deferred government grant

Unclaimed dividend

Provision for taxation

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.



UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER  COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year ended June 30, 2022
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Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

Revenue from contract with customer - net 24 5,166,171,154    4,002,482,731    

Cost of sales 25 (4,367,630,755)   (3,468,653,953)   

Gross profit 798,540,399       533,828,778       

Distribution cost 26 (45,848,895)        (35,219,989)        

Administrative expenses 27 (96,757,796)        (77,063,633)        

(142,606,691)      (112,283,622)      

655,933,708       421,545,156       

Finance cost 28 (174,390,261)      (171,436,880)      

Other operating expenses 29 (67,393,550)        (52,638,715)        

414,149,897       197,469,561       

Other income 30 137,702,874       25,389,171         

Profit before taxation 551,852,771       222,858,732       

Taxation 31 (119,845,916)      (63,057,635)        

Profit for the year 432,006,855       159,801,097       

Other comprehensive income 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently 
to profit or loss -                      -                      

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment during the year 14 -                      384,049,417       

Impact of deferred tax thereon 14 -                      (54,171,243)        

-                      329,878,174       

Adjustment of surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
due to change in tax rate 14 19,262,595         (7,130,328)          

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation 19.5 (982,374)             6,582,947           

Related tax 18 284,896              (1,909,055)          

(697,478)             4,673,892           

18,565,117         327,421,738       

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 450,571,972       487,222,835       

Earnings per share - basic and diluted
32 21.76                  8.05                    

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year ended June 30, 2022

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2022 2021
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note Rupees Rupees

Profit before taxation 551,852,771
       

222,858,732
       

Adjustments for :

Depreciation 4.1 105,294,291
       

91,871,591
         

Provision for retirement benefit obligation 19.4 19,765,793
         

17,985,959
         

Finance cost 28 174,390,261
       

171,436,880
       

Provision for slow moving stores, spares and loose tools 6.1 1,368,396
           

-
                      

Unrealized loss on other financial assets 29 2,055,496
           

-
                      

Profit on deposits 30 (5,521,448)
          

(3,448,187)
          

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 30 (1,233,155)
          

(6,555,071)
          

Unwinding of discount on other receivables 30 (6,401,253)
          

(14,415,117)
        

Loss on modification of terms of financial asset 29 -
                      

20,816,370
         

Operating cash flows before working capital changes 841,571,152
       

500,551,157
       

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools (15,080,585)
        

3,771,325
           

Stock-in-trade (117,000,712)
      

447,937,922
       

Trade debts (66,842,429)        80,376,979         

Loans and advances (78,270,764)        (2,764,239)          

Prepayments (33,605)               414,850              

Other receivables (21,711,462)        (94,652,134)        

(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 371,824,244       (157,106,792)      

72,884,687         277,977,911       

Cash generated from operations 914,455,839       778,529,068       

Finance cost paid (158,047,560)      (202,333,565)      

Retirement benefit obligation paid (16,402,660)        (9,089,500)          

Income tax paid (65,292,553)        (56,659,505)        
Long-term deposits - net (241,374)             (121,745)             

Net cash generated from operating activities 674,471,692       510,324,753       

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (394,050,878)      (88,660,081)        
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,787,500           22,648,000         
Purchase of term deposit receipt - net (32,300,000)        (23,348,300)        
Purchase of shares (7,133,910)          -                      
Profit on deposits received 3,865,410           3,434,826           

Net cash used in investing activities (427,831,878)      
(85,925,555)        

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-term finance repaid to financial institutions (83,604,014)
        

(46,041,049)
        

Export refinance repaid - net -
                      

-
                      

Long-term finance obtained from financial institutions 209,173,634
       

99,287,300
         

Long-term finance repaid to related parties (2,000,000)
          

(35,226,790)
        

Long-term finance obtained from related parties -
                      

6,000,000
           Lease liabilities repaid during the year (21,355,768)

        
(35,411,488)

        Dividend paid (19,377,782)
        

-
                      

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 82,836,070
         

(11,392,027)
        

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 329,475,884
       

413,007,171
       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1,206,649,734)
 

(1,619,656,905)
 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33 (877,173,850)
      

(1,206,649,734)
   

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 



UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the Year ended June 30, 2022

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

Revenue 

reserve

Total 

Note

Balance as at July 1, 2020 198,528,000

   

633,848,096

     

33,586,069

       

731,526,624

     

1,597,488,789

  

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year -
                  

-
                    

-
                    

159,801,097
     

159,801,097
     Other comprehensive income for the year -

                  
322,747,846

     
-

                    
4,673,892

         
327,421,738
     

-
                  

322,747,846
     

164,474,989
     

487,222,835
     

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property

plant and equipment on account of 

- incremental depreciation charged thereon - net of tax 14 -
                  

(45,876,184)
      

-
                    

45,876,184
       

-
                    

Transactions with related parties

Unwinding of discount on long-term loan 15.2

from related parties -
                  

-
                    

(9,674,126)
        

9,674,126
         

-
                    Fair value effect of interest free loan provided

by related parties 15.2 -
                  

-
                    

1,901,919
         

-
                    

1,901,919
         

Balance as at June 30, 2021 198,528,000
   

910,719,758
     

25,813,862
       

951,551,923
     

2,086,613,543
  

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year -
                  

-
                    

-
                    

432,006,855
     

432,006,855
     

Other comprehensive income for the year -
                  

19,262,595
       

-
                    

(697,478)
           

18,565,117
       

-
                  

19,262,595
       

-
                    

431,309,377
     

450,571,972
     

Transfer to / from surplus on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment on account of 

- incremental depreciation charged thereon - net of tax 14 -                  (47,491,829)      -                    47,491,829       -                    

Transactions with shareholders

Final dividend at Re.1 per share for the year ended June 30, 2021 (19,852,800)      (19,852,800)      

Transactions with related parties

Unwinding of discount on long-term loan

from related parties 15.2 -                  -                    (9,918,132)        9,918,132         -                    
Fair value effect of interest free loan provided

by related parties 15.2 -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    

Balance as at June 30, 2022 198,528,000   882,490,524     15,895,730       1,420,418,461  2,517,332,715  

########## (863,233,622)  (15,895,729)    (989,101,390)  
The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements 19,256,902     1                     ###########

19,860,494     

Capital 

reserve

 Share

capital 

Surplus on 

revaluation of 

property, plant 

and equipment - 

net of tax

 Unappropriated

profit 

----------------------------------------- Rupees ------------------------------------------------

Equity portion 

of loan from 

related parties
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2022

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

Karachi Purpose

Head Office

Nankana Sahib Purpose

Regional Office and Production Plant / Factory

2.

2.1

-

-

2.2

2.3

These are seprate financial statements of the Company in which investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any.

During the year, the Company acquired 100% ownership in ORA Home LLC (ORA), a limited liability company incorporated
in New Jersey, USA on January 5, 2022. One of the directors of the Company is the member manager of ORA. Pursuant to
the acquisition, ORA has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (refer note 5).

Idrees Textile Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as an unquoted public limited company on June 5,
1990 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited on April 28, 1992. The registered office of the Company is situated at 6-C, Ismail Centre, 1st floor,
Central Commercial Area, Bahadurabad, Karachi in the Province of Sindh. The principal activity of the Company is
manufacturing, processing and sale of all kinds of yarn. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of; 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with requirements of IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Following are the geographical location and address of all business units of the Company:

Statement of compliance

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and 

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except that certain categories of property,
plant and equipment are stated at revalued amounts and the Company's liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) is
stated at present value of defined benefit obligation.

Kot Shah Muhammad, Tehsil & District Nankana 
Punjab

6-C, Ismail Centre, 1st floor, Central Commercial 
Area, Bahadurabad

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest
rupee.

Presentation and functional currency

Basis of measurement
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2.4

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2.5

2.5.1

-

-

2.5.2

-

-

-

Use of estimates and judgements

contingencies and commitments (note 23); and

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual 
framework

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

assumptions and estimates used in accounting for defined benefit plan (notes 3.10 and 19.1);

impairment of financial assets (notes 3.5.4).

Judgements made by management in the application of the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with significant risk of material judgment in the next
financial year are set forth below:

assumptions and estimates used in writing down items of stock-in-trade to their net realizable value (notes 3.3 and
7);

assumptions and estimates used in determining provision for taxation including deferred taxation (notes 3.11, 18 and
31);

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022

assumptions and estimates used in determining provision for slow moving stores and spares (notes 3.2 and 6.1);

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets' - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

The following amendments are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each
of them. These amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant
impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before 
intended use

assumptions and estimates used in determining fair value, residual value, useful lives and recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment (notes 3.1, 3.6 and 4.1);

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022, however, these amendments are either not
relevant to the Company's operations or do not significantly impact the Company's financial statements other than certain
additional disclosure.

Changes in accounting standards and interpretations

Effective from accounting 

period beginning on or after:

New accounting standards and amendments that are not yet effective

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions extended beyond June 30, 2021

UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2022
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-

-

-

-

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

-

-

3.

3.1

3.1.1

-

-

-

Effective from accounting 

period beginning on or after:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied
in the preparation of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset including borrowing costs, if any. When
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured
reliably. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalized and the asset so
replaced is derecognised. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis at the rates specified in note 4.1.
Depreciation on additions is charged from the month an asset is available for use upto the month prior to its disposal.

Building, Labour colony, plant and machinery, electric installations and mill equipment are stated at revalued
amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any; and

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each item of property, plant and equipment that is significant in
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date.

Land is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any;

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures and vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment  losses, if any.

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of 
liabilities as current or non-current

January 01, 2023

Amendments to 'IAS 12 Income Taxes' - Amendments regarding deferred tax 
on leases and decommissioning obligations

IFRS 1  'First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards'

IFRS 17  'Insurance Contracts'

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the SECP:

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors' - Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of 
accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:

UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2022
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3.1.2

3.2

3.3

-   Raw material (imported)

-   Raw material (local)

-   Stock-in-transit

-   Work-in-process and finished goods

-   Waste

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the net estimated costs
necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Stock-in-trade

Stores, spares and loose tools 

Plant and machinery acquired under finance lease is stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Vehicles acquired under finance lease are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Assets that will be transferred at the end of the lease term are depreciated over the useful life of
the assets commencing from the year in which the leased assets are put into operation. Depreciation and other policies are
same as for the owned assets described above.

These are stated at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value, less allowance for obsolete and slow moving
items (if any). Items in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon upto the
reporting date. Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on the
management’s estimate regarding their future usability.

These are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value applying the following basis:

Cost signifies in relation to:

Lower of cost and NRV

Cost accumulated up to reporting date

Lower of cost (weighted average) and NRV

Lower of cost (specific identification basis) and net realisable value 
(NRV) 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, and consists of expenditure incurred and advances
made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant
asset categories as and when assets are available for intended use.

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially
from the estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related
surplus on revaluation of assets (net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings (unappropriated profit).
Further, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the
particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings (unappropriated profit).  

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and is recognised in
other income / other expenses in the statement of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, any related amount
included in the surplus on revaluation is transferred to retained earnings (unappropriated profit).

Surplus on revaluation of assets is recognised net of tax, in statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) and presented
as a separate component of equity as “surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment”, except that it reverses a
revaluation deficit for the same asset previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the surplus is
credited to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit charged previously.

Deficit on revaluation of assets is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except that it reverses a revaluation surplus
for the same asset previously recognised in statement of other comprehensive income, in which case the deficit is charged
to other comprehensive income to the extent of the surplus credited previously. The revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Leased assets

Capital work-in-progress

Net realisable value (NRV)

UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2022
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3.4

3.5

3.5.1

At amortized cost (“AC”),

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). 

1)

2)

1)

2)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Classification of financial assets

Financial instruments

Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written off.

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

Net realizable value (NRV) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the net estimated
costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods represents annual average manufacturing cost which consists of
prime cost and appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Trade debts and other receivables

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus
the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not  designated as FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, only dividend income is recognised in income statement. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis.

FVTOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognised in OCI.

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less
loss allowance, if any. The Company measures the loss allowance for trade debts at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses (ECL). The expected credit losses on trade debts are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
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3.5.2

3.5.3

3.5.4

–

–

Financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

Other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset) has
not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Recognition and initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets at FVTPL

All other financial assets are classified at FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and debt securities not classified
either as AC or FVTOCI).

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in the income statement.

Impairment

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assets.

Under expected credit loss (ECL) model of IFRS 9, the Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are
measured at 12-month ECLs: 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s statement of assets and liabilities when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated using the
effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

All financial assets at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income.

For debt instruments classified as financial assets at FVTOCI, the amounts in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to income statement on derecognition of financial assets. This treatment is in contrast to equity instruments classified as
financial assets at FVTOCI, where there is no reclassification on derecognition.
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3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.10.1

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its factory workers who have completed the minimum
qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined
through actuarial valuation carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present, legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents used in statement of cash flows include cash in hand balances with banks in current and
deposit accounts and short term borrowings. Short-term borrowings availed by the Company, are payable on demand and
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and inventories are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment
loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. The
effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Derecognition

Provisions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated into reporting currency
equivalents using foreign currency rates ruling on the reporting date. Exchange differences on foreign currency
transactions and translation are included in the income currently. 

Impairment of non-financial assets

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Defined benefit plan

Retirement benefit obligation

Cash and cash equivalents
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3.10.2

3.11

3.11.1

3.11.2

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Current tax

Taxation

Defined contribution plan

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after taking into account tax
rebates and tax credits available, if any, or turnover at the specified rate or Alternate Corporate Tax as defined in section
113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. Charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessment framed / finalized during the year. However, for income
covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits in the foreseeable future
will be available against which the assets can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Further, the Company also recognizes a deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

The Company operates an approved funded contributory provident fund scheme for all head office staff. Equal monthly
contributions are made both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary per annum.

Interest income is accrued on time proportionate basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable
effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment have been established and is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and included in other income.

Dividend income

Revenue recognition

Borrowing costs

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then defined benefit liability,
taking into account any changes in the defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest
expense and current service cost are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary difference between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred
tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Deferred tax

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of
the respective assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The Company manufactures and contracts with customers for the sale of yarn which generally include single performance
obligation. Management has assessed that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, which is when the goods are dispatched to the customer in case of local sales and
date of bill of lading in case of export sales.
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3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Investment in subsidiary is measured at cost less any identified impairment loss in the Company's separate financial
statements.

The carrying amount of an investment carried at cost is derecognised when it is sold or otherwise disposed of. The
difference between the fair value of any consideration received on disposal and the carrying amount of the investment is
recorded in the Unconsolidated Profit or Loss account as a gain or loss on disposal. 

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of the investment in subsidiary to assess whether there
is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment losses are recognised as expense in the
Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. Investment in subsidiary that suffered an impairment, is reviewed for possible
reversal of impairment at each reporting date. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is
recognised in the Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Earnings per share

Dividend and appropriation to / from reserves

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriations to / from reserves is recognised in the period in
which these are approved.

Investment in Subsidiary

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive
received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight line method over the assets economic life. The right-of-use
asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease  liability. 

Leases - Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

The Company recognises leases as a right-of-use asset and corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Company.

The lease liability is subsequently measured (at amortised cost) by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability using the effective interest method and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an
index or rate, change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or
loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

For short term leases and leases of low / immaterial value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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3.20

3.21

3.22

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets

- Owned 4.1.1 1,940,313,063 1,964,381,190 
- Right of use assets 4.1.2 37,614,719       75,948,660       

1,977,927,782  2,040,329,850  

Advance against vehicle 4.1.3 17,340,000       5,717,100         

Capital work in progress:

- Building 125,529,930     -                    
- Plant & Machinery 213,451,480     -                    

4.1.4 338,981,410     -                    

2,334,249,192 2,046,046,950 

A loan is initially recognised and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires loans at below-
market rates to be initially measured at their fair value - e.g. the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted
at a market-related interest rate. The benefit, that is the government grant, is measured as the difference between the fair
value of the loan on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according to the nature of the grant.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred, are recognised on a systematic basis in the income for the
year in which the related expenses are recognised. Grants that compensate for the cost of an asset are recognised in
income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Government grants are recognised at fair value, as deferred income, when there is reasonable assurance that the grants
will be received and the Company will be able to comply with the conditions associated with the grants.

In accordance with IFRS 9 the benefit of interest rate lower than the market rate on borrowings obtained under State Bank
of Pakistan (SBP) Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employees of the entity and
Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF), is accounted for as a government grant which is the difference between
amount of loan received and the fair value of the loan on the date of disbursement. The differential amount presented in
statement of financial position as deferred government grant. The amortisation of deferred government grant is netted off
with finance cost within in the statement of profit or loss.

Government grants

Segment reporting

Commitments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses that relates to transactions with any of the other components of the Company. 

The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company have been identified as the chief operating decision-
makers (CODM), who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments.
Management has determined that the Company has a single reportable segment as the CODM views the Company's
operations as one reportable segment.

Commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred are disclosed in the financial statements at committed
amounts. Commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in
rupee terms at committed amounts.
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2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

5. LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Cost -

                     

-

                     

5.1

USD PKR
Assets

Stock-in-trade 52,286
               

9,230,173
          

Trade receivable 25,000
               

4,413,284
          

Cash in hand 1,000
                 

176,531
             

78,286
               

13,819,988
        

Liabilities

Loan from related parties 91,061
               

16,075,147
        

Trade and other payable 83,171
               

14,682,210
        

174,232
             

30,757,357
        

Fair value of net assets acquired (95,946)              (16,937,369)       

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

6. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores and spares 53,044,427        45,950,186        
Stores and spares in transit 12,156,051        4,169,707          
Loose tools 64,585               64,585               

65,265,063        50,184,478        
Less: provision for slow moving items 6.1 (7,743,217)         6,374,821          

57,521,846        56,559,299        
6.1 Movement in provision for slow moving items

Balance as at July 1, 6,374,821
          

6,374,821
          

Provision made during the year 25 1,368,396
          

-
                     

 
Balance as at June 30, 7,743,217

          
6,374,821

          

7. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material

- In hand 787,024,122
      

785,996,519
      - In transit 99,948,162

        
155,372,804

      
Work-in-process 56,022,198

        

41,992,838

        Finished goods

- In hand 163,228,844

      

61,419,155

        - In transit 27,545,324

        

-

                     - Third party 57,888,374

        

39,370,268

        Waste 15,463,680

        

5,968,408

          1,207,120,704

   

1,090,119,992

   
7.1

During the year, the Company acquired 100% ownership in ORA Home LLC (ORA), a limited liability company incorporated 
in New Jersey, USA on January 5, 2022. The Company paid nil consideration for the acquisition of subsidiary due to net 
liability postion in the books of subsidaiary and accordingly assumed all liablities of the subsidiary as on January 5, 2022. Fair 
value of net assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

Provision on stock-in-trade during the year was nil (2021: nil).
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

8. TRADE DEBTS 

Considered good

Export - secured 308,726,383

      

83,606,403

        

Local 459,837,248

      

618,114,799

      

8.1 768,563,631

      

701,721,202

      

Considered doubtful

Local 12,413,215

        

12,413,215

        

780,976,846

      

714,134,417

      

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 8.2 (12,413,215)

       

(12,413,215)

       

768,563,631

      

701,721,202

      

8.1

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

8.2

Balance as at July 1, 12,413,215
        

12,413,215
        

Provision made during the year -
                     

-
                     

Balance as at June 30, 12,413,215
        

12,413,215
        

8.3

0 - 90 days 766,818,903      573,107,254      

91-180 days 10,001,125        87,222,961        
181 - 360 days 1,779,918          51,427,302        
Above 360 days 2,376,900          2,376,900          

780,976,846      714,134,417      

8.4

Confirmed LC

Confirmed LC

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

9. LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Considered good

Loans to employees - unsecured 9.1 359,000

             

632,000

             
Advance to employees 9.1 474,481

             

475,481

             Advances - unsecured 

- to suppliers 93,029,920

        

19,923,795

        

- for expenses 6,602,942

          

1,164,303

          
99,632,862

        

21,088,098

        

Advance income tax 71,272,764

        

61,325,131

        
171,739,107

      

83,520,710

        

Amount in Rupees

308,726,383

                                     

Ageing of trade debts past due but not impaired

Movement in provision for doubtful debts

Following are the details for local and export related trade debts outstanding as at June 30 2022, which are secured against
 letter of credit:

Trade debts are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 to 90 days terms. Trade debts are unsecured other than the
export and local trade debts that are secured against letter of credits as mentioned in note 7.4.

Exports

Indirect Export

Mode of arrangement

44,780,578
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9.1 These represents unsecured, interest free, short-term loan and advance given to employees of the Company.

2022 2021

10. OTHER RECEIVABLES Note Rupees Rupees

Sales tax 

- considered good 150,850,078

      

21,158,402

        

- considered doubtful 2,630,629

          

2,630,629

          

Export rebate - considered doubtful 2,194,344

          

2,194,344

          

Duty draw back receivable 5,872,932

          

5,872,932

          

Cotton claim receivable 30.1 22,851,349

        

3,279,126

          

Profit on deposits 3,757,270

          

2,101,232

          

Others 10.1 1,133,058

          

122,284,242

      

189,289,660

      

159,520,907

      

Less: provision for doubtful receivables 10.2 (4,824,973)

         

(4,824,973)

         

184,464,687
      

154,695,934
      

10.1

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
10.2 Provision for doubtful receivables

As at July 01, 2021            4,824,973            4,824,973 

Provision recognized during the year                        -                          -   

As at June 30, 2022            4,824,973            4,824,973 

11. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

- At amoritised cost

Term deposit receipts 11.1        129,394,620 97,094,620        

- Fair value through profit or loss

Short term investment in listed company 10.2            5,078,414 -
                     

134,473,034
      

97,094,620
        

11.1

11.2

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 1,351,699

          

1,761,291

          Cash at banks

    -  in current accounts 12.1 4,437,477

          

6,578,622

          
    -  in savings account 12.2 86,100

               

30,835

               
5,875,276

          

8,370,748

          

In previous year, the Company entered into an agreement with a customer whereby overdue balance as of January 1, 2021
was to be paid in instalments until December 31, 2021. This resulted in modification in terms of financial assets and
therefore, the Company had recognized modification loss, as disclosed in note 29. As at June 30, 2021, the outstanding
balance was Rs. 120.58 million. During the year, the customer repaid full amount as per the agreement and the current
balance is presented under trade debts.

These represent term deposit receipts with various banks for a period ranging from six months to one year carrying mark-up
at the rates ranging from 5.90% to 13.75% (2021: 6.25% to 9%) per annum. The banks have lien on these term deposit
receipts on account of guarantees provided by such banks as disclosed in note 21.1.1 to the financial statements. These will
mature latest by June 16, 2023 (2021: June 09, 2022).

This represents investment in shares of Lucky Cement Limited a listed company on Pakistan Stock Exchange. Shares 
acquired during the year and held as at June 30, 2022 are 11,000 at a cost of Rs. 7,133,910. The shares are categorised 
under fair value through profit and loss account as the Company intends to receive short term profits through trading of 
shares. The unrealized loss as at June 30, 2022 was Rs. 2,055,496. 
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12.1

12.2

13. SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021 2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

   Authorised

22,000,000 22,000,000 220,000,000 220,000,000

   Issued, subscribed and paid-up

19,852,800 19,852,800 198,528,000 198,528,000

      

13.1

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

14. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
 EQUIPMENT - net of tax

As at July 1, 1,094,962,264   769,235,102      

Surplus arising during the year -                     384,049,417      

Less: transferred to unappropriated profit on account of:

- incremental depreciation - net of tax (47,491,829)       (45,876,184)       

- related deferred tax liability (11,220,008)       (12,446,071)       

- disposals - net of tax -                     -                     
- related deferred tax liability -                     -                     

 (58,711,837)       (58,322,255)       

As at June 30 1,036,250,427   1,094,962,264   

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

Revaluation surplus as at July 1, 184,242,506
      

135,387,006
      

Surplus arising during the year 18 -
                     

54,171,243
        Adjustment due to change in tax rate 18 (19,262,595)

       
7,130,328

          Incremental depreciation charged during the year (11,220,008)
       

(12,446,071)
       Assets disposed-off during the year -

                     
-

                     
18 153,759,903

      
184,242,506

      
As at June 30 882,490,524

      

910,719,758

      

15. LONG-TERM FINANCE

Long term portion

Financial institutions 15.1 173,059,675

      

95,173,061

        
Related parties 15.2 41,461,793

        

73,927,139

        214,521,468

      

169,100,200

      
Current portion

15.1 88,583,958

        

90,459,584

        
15.2 55,278,076

        

14,894,598

        
143,862,034

      

105,354,182

      

Financial institutions

Related parties

   paid in cash

The Company has one class of ordinary share, which carry equal voting rights but no right to fixed income. Voting rights,
board selection etc. are in proportion to their shareholding.

This includes an amount of Rs. 6.68 million (2021: Rs. 6.68 million) on which the bank has created lien on account of
guarantee provided by such bank as disclosed in note 23.1.1 to the financial statements.

Number of shares

It carries markup of 12.25% (2021: 6.56%) per annum.

   Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

   Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully
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15.1.1

15.1.2

15.1.3

15.1.4

15.1.5

15.1.6

15.1.7

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
15.2 Loan from related parties - unsecured

Opening as at July 01, 88,821,737   110,276,320 

Receipts during the year 15.2.1 -                6,000,000     

Repayments during the year 15.2.2 (2,000,000)    (35,226,790)  

Unwinding of discount 28 9,918,132     9,674,126     

Release of equity portion of loan due to change in terms of loan -                -                

Less: Fair value adjustment -                (1,901,919)    

96,739,869   88,821,737   

Payable within one year (55,278,076)  (14,894,598)  

Closing as at June 30, 41,461,793   73,927,139   

15.2.1

15.2.2

The loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge over weaving dust and waste removal machine with 0% to 25%
margin.

These represent plant and machinery and vehicles acquired under musharaka arrangement. The rates of mark-up ranges
from 9.46% to 17.82%. 

The Company has entered into a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) agreement with an Islamic bank and
conventional banks, with the total limit aggregating to Rs. 615.37 million (2021: 600 million). This includes Rs.150 million
being the sub-facility under the letter of credit facility agreement amounting to Rs. 175 million with the Islamic bank. The
unavailed facility as at year end was Rs. 451.07 million (2021: 600). These facilities carry mark up of SBP Base Rate + 4%
(2021: SBP Base Rate + 4%). The tenure of these facilities ranges from 5 to 10 years with grace period up to 2 years. These
facilities are secured against various assets including exclusive charge over imported machinery, first pari passu charge
over land & building, hypothecation charge over specific equipment and machinery, and also the personal guarantee of all
the directors and mortgagors of the Company.

The loan is obtained to meet the capital expenditure requirement of the Company. The loan is secured by way of first
exclusive and specific hypothecation charge over imported machinery of the Company. The unavailed facility available as at
June 30, 2021 is Rs. 48.71 million.

In year ended June 30, 2021 the Company obtained loan amounting to Rs. 6 million from the directors of the Company as
per the agreement signed on December 15, 2020. These loans are interest free, unsecured and are expected to be repaid
by the end of December 14, 2024. Using the discount rate of 10% per annum, the fair value of the loans is estimated at Rs.
4.1 million. The difference of Rs. 1.9 million is recognized in equity in this regard. 

During the year, the Company has repaid loan amounting to Rs. 2 million to directors and their closed family members.

The interest (i.e., unwinding of the difference between present value on initial recognition and the amount received) is being
recognized on the loan in the statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The loan is for financing salaries and wages under SBP Refinance Scheme. The loan is secured against existing land and
building and plant and machinery of the Company with 25% margin.

The loan is secured by way of first exclusive and specific hypothecation charge over imported machinery of the Company
(Compact Spinning Assembly) with 0% margin.

The loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge over Compact Spinning, imported Gen set and locally purchased
carding machines with 0% to 25% margin.
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Due Date Loan 

received

Present 

value

June 30, 2022    12,894,598    12,894,598 

June 03, 2023    22,551,000    19,609,565 

June 30, 2023    26,190,000    22,773,913 

December 08, 2023    45,000,000    36,625,053 

December 14, 2024      6,000,000      4,836,740 

112,635,598
 

96,739,869
   

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
16. LEASE LIABILITY

Present value of minimum lease payments 16.1 9,729,346     29,408,329   

Less: current portion shown under current liabilities (7,767,062)    (19,268,069)  

1,962,284     10,140,260   

16.1

Not later than one year 8,535,294          768,232 7,767,062   21,113,822  1,845,753     19,268,069   
Later than one year but not 111

     later than five years     2,091,437       129,153    1,962,284 10,668,764          528,504    10,140,260 

  10,626,731       897,385    9,729,346   31,782,586      2,374,257    29,408,329 

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
17. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT

Deferred grant against temporary economic refinance facility 49,558,628
   

-
                Current portion of deferred government grant (5,297,394)

    
-

                
44,261,234

   
-

                

17.1 Deferred government grant relates to the difference between the fair value and actual proceed of temporary economic 
refinance facility loan obtained under SBP's refinance scheme. It is being amortised over the period of ten years from the 
date of loan disbursement with an amount equal to the difference between the finance cost charged that would have been 
charged to statement of profit or loss at market rate and the interest paid as per the scheme.

The rates of mark-up ranges from 9.46% to 10.38% (2021: 9.46% to 10.38%) per annum and are used as d iscounting 
factor. The lease terms are upto 3 years. The Company intends to exercise its option to purchase the  leased assets upon 
completion of the lease period. Liabilities are secured against leased assets, demand promissory notes and security 
deposits.

2022

As at June 30, 2022, the loans received from directors are due to be paid as follows, unless otherwise the terms of
repayment are further extended:

These represent plant and machinery and vehicles acquired under leases from leasing companies and financial institutions. 
Future minimum lease payments under lease together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as 
follows:

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees ----------------------- -------------------------------

Total future minimum lease 
   payments

2021

Future 

minimum 

lease 

payments

Finance 

cost

Present 

value

Future 
minimum 

lease 
payments

Finance 
cost

Present value
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
18. DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 1, 252,700,211

      

183,503,681

      

Reversal to profit or loss 31 (3,969,918)

         

5,985,904

          

Charged to other comprehensive income (284,896)

            
1,909,055

          

Adjustment to the related deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus 14 -
                     

54,171,243
        

Tax rate adjustment on surplus 14 (19,262,595)
       

7,130,328
          

Balance as at June 30, 229,182,802
      

252,700,211
      

This comprises of the following:

Taxable temporary differences:

- accelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment 129,240,828
      

142,440,082
      

- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 149,259,371
      

184,242,507
      

278,500,199
      

326,682,589
      

Deductible temporary differences:

- provision for doubtful trade debts 2,305,039
          

3,599,832
          

- provision for stores and spares 1,437,856          1,360,398          

- carried forward depreciation loss -                     8,423,415          

- provision for doubtful other receivables 895,960             1,399,242          

- provision for staff gratuity 11,168,179        12,323,664        

- minimum tax 35,360,851        46,875,827        

- Other financial asset 381,703             -                     

       (51,549,588)        (73,982,378)

226,950,611      252,700,211      

19. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Mill 19.2 59,891,088        54,680,081        
Head office 19.10              252,372 252,372             

60,143,460        54,932,453        
19.1

2022 2021
The principal assumptions used are as follows:

-  Discount rate 13.25% 10.00%

-  Expected rate of salary increase 12.25% 9.00%

-  Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
19.2 Liability recognized in the statement of financial position

Present value of retirement benefit obligation (RBO) 19.3 59,891,088

        

54,680,081

        

The Projected Unit Credit Method based on following significant assumptions was used for valuation of the scheme. The
basis of recognition together with details as per actuarial valuation conducted as at June 30, 2022 are as under:

Retirement benefit obligation - defined benefit plan

 set back one 

year 

 set back one 
year 
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
19.3

Balance as at July 1, 54,680,081

        

48,516,369

        

Expense recognized in profit or loss 19.4 19,765,793

        

17,985,959

        

Total remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 19.5 982,374

             

(6,582,947)

         

Benefits paid (13,197,160)

       

(2,818,600)

         

Benefits due but not yet paid 20.4 (2,340,000)

         

(2,420,700)

         

59,891,088

        

54,680,081

        

19.4 Expense recognized in profit or loss

Current service cost 15,074,643

        

14,084,738

        

Interest cost 4,691,150

          

3,901,221

          

19,765,793

        

17,985,959

        

19.5 Total remeasurements recognized in 

   other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on liability arising on

- financial assumptions 566,441
             

260,637
             

- experience adjustments 415,933
             

(6,843,584)
         

982,374
             (6,582,947)

         

19.6

Current year

Rupees Rupees

Discount rate 1% (3,183,543)
         

3,620,844
          

Salary growth rate 1% 3,768,227
          

         (3,374,901)

Prior year

Rupees Rupees

Discount rate 1% (2,948,800)

         

          3,363,396 

Salary growth rate 1% 3,512,500

          

         (3,139,415)

19.7

Movement in Retirement benefit obligation (RBO) 

    during the year

Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the defined
benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

Sensitivity analysis

Salary increase risk: The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The
risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

 Increase / (decrease) in defined 
benefit obligation due to 

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

 Increase / (decrease) in defined 

benefit obligation due to 

Change in 

assumption

Increase in 

assumption

Decrease in 

assumption

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Change in 
assumption

Longevity risks: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the
plan level over the entire retiree population.

The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:
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19.8

19.9

19.10

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 20.1 104,646,065

      

38,209,984

        

Accrued liabilities 67,130,038

        

58,053,169

        

Contract liabilities 259,420,029

      

21,098,368

        

Workers' profit participation fund 20.2 28,773,940

        

12,275,733

        

Workers' welfare fund 24,437,816

        

18,611,659

        

Infrastructure cess 20.3 104,121,092

      

73,680,135

        

Payable to provident fund 458,574

             

394,387

             

Gratuity due but not yet paid 20.4 1,950,700

          

2,816,200

          

Withholding tax payable 16,411,396

        
11,251,271

        

607,349,650
      

236,390,906
      

20.1 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 90-days term.

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

20.2 Workers' profit participation fund 

Balance as at July 1, 12,275,733        4,316,249          

Allocation during the year 29 28,773,940        12,275,733        

Interest on funds utilized in Company's business 28 299,326             70,413               

41,348,999        16,662,395        

Paid during the year (12,575,059)       (4,386,662)         

Balance as at June 30, 28,773,940
        

12,275,733
        

20.3

On April 06, 2021, the High Court of Sindh vide order C.P.No D-3309 / 2011, summoned to encash all the bank guarantees
furnished by the petitioners. The SHC issued this order reasoning that the entire cargo being imported in the Country
routes through the Province of Sindh, and for that the Provincial Legislature thought it appropriate to impose a certain
amount of tax in the form of a cess. It is though being collected from an importer of goods; but in essence it is not on
imports; but for maintenance and development of infrastructure on imported goods. However, during the year, the
Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated September 01, 2021, suspended the order issued by SHC stating that it
suffers from constitutional and legal defects and granted the interim relief to the Company and other petitioners. The order
issued by the Supreme Court of Pakistan states that the petitioners shall keep the bank guarantees already submitted
pursuant to the earlier order of SHC and shall furnish the fresh bank guarantees equivalent to the amount of levy claimed
by the Sindh Government against release of all future consignments of imported goods.

This amount relates to the unfunded gratuity scheme for the head office staff which has been freezed since 2002, as per
the Company policy.

The Government of Sindh through Sindh Finance Act, 1994 provided for imposition of an infrastructure fee for the
development and maintenance of infrastructure on goods entering or leaving the Province through air or sea at prescribed
rates. The levy was challenged by the Company along with other companies in the High Court of Sindh through civil suits
which were dismissed by the single judge of the High Court of Sindh through its decision in October 2003. On appeal filed
there against, the High Court of Sindh has held through an order passed in September 2008 that the levy as imposed
through the Sindh Finance Act, 1994 (amended time to time) was not valid till December 28, 2006, however, thereafter on
account of an amendment in the Sindh Finance (Amendment) Ordinance, 2006, it had become valid and is payable by the
Appellants. The Company, along with other companies, filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the
aforementioned order of the High Court of Sindh. The Supreme Court granted stay by passing an interim order on January
22, 2009. The order passed by the High Court of Sindh was set aside by the Supreme Court vide its order dated May 20,
2011. Consequently, a new petition has been filed in the High Court of Sindh. Through the interim order passed on May 31,
2011, the High Court has ordered that for every consignment cleared after December 28, 2006, 50% of the value of
infrastructure fee should be paid in cash and a bank guarantee for the remaining amount should be submitted until the final
order is passed. Refer notes 11 & 23.

Number of employees covered by the scheme are 733 (2021: 748).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2022 is 6 years (2021: 6 years).
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

Balance as at July 1, 73,680,135

        

59,795,206

        

Charge for the year 34,548,641

        

27,802,430

        

108,228,776

      

87,597,636

        

Payments made during the year (4,107,684)

         

(13,917,501)

       

Balance as at June 30, 104,121,092

      

73,680,135

        

20.4 Movement in gratuity due but not yet paid

Balance as at July 1, 2,816,200

          

6,666,400

          

Add: transfer from RBO during the year 19.3 2,340,000

          

2,420,700

          

Less: payments made during the year (3,205,500)

         

(6,270,900)

         

1,950,700

          
2,816,200

          

21. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long-term finance 3,030,069
          

437,795
             

Short-term borrowings 23,293,527
        

21,138,017
        

26,323,596
        

21,575,812
        

22. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Banking companies - secured

Running finance 199,352,132      428,815,076      

Cash finance 94,728,455        221,806,459      
Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM) 588,968,539      564,398,947      

22.1 883,049,126      1,215,020,482

22.1

23. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

23.1

2022 2021

23.1.1 Rupees Rupees

-   Lahore Electric Supply Company Limited 15,310,568

        

15,310,568

        
-   Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 77,576,000

        

77,576,000

        

-   Excise and Taxation Office 103,258,600

      

68,258,600

        Post dated cheques given to Collector of Customs as indemnity 380,853,295

      

306,797,578

      
23.1.2

Facilities for running finance, cash finance, FIM and Murabaha are available from various banks up to Rs. 2,682 million
(2021: Rs. 3,070 million). These facilities are subject to mark-up at 3 month KIBOR plus 1% to 2.5% (2021: 3 month
KIBOR plus 1% to 2.5%) per annum payable quarterly. These are secured against various assets including first pari passu
hypothecation charge over present and future stock-in-trade, pledge of cotton, first hypothecation charge over present and
future book debts, ranking charge on the stocks and receivables of the company, plants and machinery, equitable
mortgage on various properties and personal guarantees of all the directors of the Company.

Contingencies

Letters of guarantee issued by banks on behalf of the Company to:

In August 2013, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) vide its S.R.O. # 726(I)/2015 notified the sale price for sale
of natural gas at Rs. 573.28/MMBTU for captive power consumption (CPP) with immediate effect. Subsequent to the said
S.R.O., the Company received gas bills at Rs. 573.28/MMBTU, being considered as CPP by the utility company. The
Company, considering itself as industrial consumer paid gas charges at the rate applicable before August 2013 on the
basis of the stay order obtained from the Court.

by the Sindh Government against release of all future consignments of imported goods.

The aggregate unavailed short-term borrowing facilities amounted to Rs.3,429 million (2021: Rs.1,858 million).

The Management is confident for a favorable outcome. However, as a matter of prudence, the Company has made
provision as follows:

UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23.1.3

23.1.4

The Federal Government issued Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Acts in the years 2011, 2014 and 2015. All
GIDC Acts have been subject of thorough debate and consideration at honorable High Courts of the Country as well as the
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP).

From December 2015, the gas company has started supplying imported Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) resulting in the change
in rates over which no dispute has been raised by the Company.

Subsequently, on September 1, 2015, OGRA vide its S.R.O. # 876(I)/2015 notified the price for sale of natural gas at Rs.
600/MMBTU for industrial consumers and on captive power consumption, with effect from September 1, 2015. Aggrieved by
the notification, the Company filed a suit in the Lahore High Court contending that the mandatory procedures as laid down in
the OGRA Ordinance, 2002 and Rules made thereunder were not fulfilled while issuing the notification. Hence, the Company
paid / accrued gas charges at rates applicable before the above S.R.O. # 726(I)/2015 on the basis of stay orders obtained
from Lahore High Court, Multan bench, from time to time, until November 2015.

On July 6, 2020, the OGRA issued a decision whereby, the Company (the petitioner) was directed to pay the outstanding
amount to the utility company within 30 day period from the date of decision. In response to the above decision, a writ petition
was filed before the honourable Lahore High Court (LHC) by the Company and the LHC issued a stay order on October 8,
2020, which suspended the OGRA's decision, however, the case is still pending before LHC.

An order dated November 11, 2020 was passed against the Company by Collector of Customs, Karachi creating a demand
of Rs. 13.023 million along with a penalty of Rs. 0.5 million. The Company has challenged the above order by way of filing an
appeal before the Customs Appellate Tribunal at Karachi, which is pending for final adjudication. However, a stay order was
successfully obtained from Honourable Sindh High Court on December 22, 2020 by filing Constitutional Petition number 6618
/ 2020, which is still operative.

On August 12, 2020, the SCP issued its verdict (Judgement) and held that “the levy imposed under Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess Act, 2015 (the Act) is in accordance with the Provisions of the Constitution”. The Supreme Court has also
held that “the Provisions of section 8 of the Act, which give retrospective effect to the charge and recovery of GIDC levied
from the year 2011 are also declared to be valid being within the legislative competence of the Parliament.” However, since
the Company is an industrial concern and it did not pass on the burden of GIDC to its consumers prior to the GIDC Act, 2015
(or even thereafter), management believes that the Company is entitled to the exemption under the first proviso to Section
8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015 from payment of the GIDC levied under the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014. As such,
arrears due from the Company may only include amounts levied under the GIDC Act, 2015 from the date of its
commencement, i.e., May 22, 2015. 

Subsequent to the Order passed by the Honorable SCP on August 12, 2020, Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL)
submitted bills to the industry including the Company claiming arrears of first instalment in deference to the said Judgement
of the SCP. As the bills of arrears were calculated for monthly instalment on the basis of entire total payable amount from
2011 to July 2020 by charging Cess on the higher rate of tariff applicable to Captive Connections apart from the fact that the
implication of Section 8 of the said Act, 2015 was not taken into consideration whereby it was provided that the industry,
which has not collected the Cess from the Customers prior to 2015 shall not be liable to the payment of GIDC for the said
period from 2011 to 2015. During the year, a writ petition No. 42176 / 2020 was filed by All Pakistan Textile Mills Association
(APTMA) (where the Company is also a party to the petition) before Honorable High Court at Lahore against imposition of
GIDC Act 2015 and the recovery of Cess from December 2011 to May 2015. Further, during the year, SNGPL started billing
for GIDC to the Company against which payment was made by the Company till March 2021 based on the order issued by
Honorable Lahore High Court against the aforementioned writ petition. Pursuant to the order, Lahore High Court restrained
SNGPL from charging the Cess at the higher tariff rate of Captive Connection and directed to issue revised bill calculated at
the rate applicable to industrial connection. Besides, the payment for the period from 2011 to 2015 was also suspended in
view of the implication of the said provision of law. Further, the Company made payment which is applicable to industrial
consumers and for the difference between the amount charged to industrial consumers and captive power consumers, post-
dated cheques are being issued by the Company in favour of SNGPL. For the amount relating to the payment of GIDC based
on the actual calculation prior to 2015, the decision was made by the Lahore High Court on June 27, 2021 whereby it has
restrained the SNGPL to collect the cess prior to 2015. 

On September 27, 2021, the Honorable Lahore High Court issued a judgment on writ petition No. 42716 / 2020 whereby it 
was concluded that all the parties to the petition (including the Company) fall under the category of Industrial Consumers 
rather than Captive Power Plant and shall remain liable to the tariff applicable to Industrial Consumers.

During the year, the Company filed an appeal before the Honorable High Court of Sindh on the ground that no burden of 
GIDC had been passed to its customers / clients and thus the Company is not liable to pay GIDC under GIDC Act 2015. The 
Court granted stay order against recovery of GIDC payable by the Company till the finalization of matter by Sindh High Court. 
The matter is currently pending in the Sindh High Court. However, as a matter of abundant caution and without prejudice to 
the suits filed, the Company has made aggregate provision of Rs. 5.4 million (2021: Rs. 5.4 million) in respect of GIDC up to 
June 30, 2022.
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2022 2021

23.2 Commitments Rupees Rupees

Letters of credit opened and outstanding for import of:

-   plant and machinery 665,256,522

      

599,912,927

      

-   stores and spares 30,067,092

        

8,858,225

          

-   raw material 581,096,452

      

621,274,797

      

Local bills discounted 292,314,555

      

45,115,491

        

24. SALES - NET

Yarn

- Local 1,474,315,047

   

3,473,947,661

   

- Export 946,129,335

      
678,241,033

      

- Indirect export 3,033,819,964
   

-
                     

5,454,264,346
   

4,152,188,694
   

Raw material - Local 191,348,293
      

187,943,151
      

Waste - Local 290,228,814
      

257,032,969
      

5,935,841,453
   

4,597,164,814
   

Less:

 Sales tax (738,665,360)
     (572,554,641)

     

 Brokerage and commission (31,004,939)       (20,805,753)       

 Discount -                     (1,321,689)         

5,166,171,154   4,002,482,731   

25. COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 25.1 3,466,763,979   2,524,452,996   

Salaries, wages and benefits 25.2 203,529,270      178,805,427      
Fuel and power 488,123,680      371,397,711      
Depreciation 4.2 93,527,805        81,647,853        
Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 59,344,788

        
57,453,154

        
Packing material 62,188,408

        
56,725,436

        
Insurance 10,772,496

        
9,297,989

          
Repairs and maintenance 2,996,441

          
3,643,256

          Provision of slow moving store & spare 6.1 1,368,396
          

-
                     Vehicles running and maintenance 2,696,061

          
1,437,111

          Other manufacturing overheads 3,406,336
          

4,298,757
          927,953,681

      
764,706,694

      4,394,717,660

   
3,289,159,690

   
Work-in-process

  Opening stock 41,992,838

        

38,283,787

          Closing stock (56,022,198)

       

(41,992,838)

       (14,029,360)

       

(3,709,051)

         Cost of goods manufactured 4,380,688,300

   

3,285,450,639

   Finished goods

  Opening stock 106,757,831

      

145,315,502

      
  Yarn purchased 38,150,500

        

-

                     
  Closing stock (264,126,222)

     

(106,757,831)

     
(119,217,891)

     

38,557,671

        Cost of raw material sold 106,160,346

      

144,645,643

      4,367,630,755

   

3,468,653,953
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2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

25.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock 785,996,519

      

1,004,724,792

   

Purchases - net  3,467,791,582

   

2,305,724,723

   

4,253,788,101

   

3,310,449,515

 

Closing stock (787,024,122)

     

(785,996,519)

 

3,466,763,979

   

2,524,452,996

   

25.2

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

26. DISTRIBUTION COST 

Freight and octroi 22,231,603.00

   
17,617,251

        

Commission and other charges 4,059,664.00
     

2,538,944
          

Clearing and forwarding 4,965,937.00
     

4,996,039
          

Business promotion expenses 12,715,671.00
   

8,608,563
          

Export development surcharge 1,876,020.00
     

1,459,192
          

45,848,895
        

35,219,989
        

27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 27.1 60,189,946        44,658,142        

Fees, subscription and periodicals 4,912,716          3,220,224          

Entertainment 861,579             792,305             
Traveling and conveyance 437,206             220,628             
Postage and telephone 1,429,310          1,297,724          
Electricity, gas and water 990,532             3,371,080          
Vehicles running and maintenance 8,358,167          5,699,754          
Depreciation 4.2 11,766,486        10,223,738        
Legal and professional 527,858

             
700,000

             
Auditor's remuneration 27.2 1,541,000

          
1,073,000

          
Printing and stationery 790,177

             
528,251

             Computer 74,520
               

173,450
             Rest house -

                     
426,426

             Advertisement 146,900
             

102,200
             Donation 27.3 4,382,000

          
3,686,878

          Others 349,399

             

889,833

             96,757,796

        

77,063,633

        

27.1

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

27.2 Auditors' remuneration

Audit Services

Annual audit fee 950,000

             

800,000

             
Consolidation fee 250,000

             

-

                     
Half year review fee 175,000

             

130,000

             

Review of code of corporate governance 55,000

               

50,000

               

Other services 55,000

               

50,000

               

Out of pocket expenses 56,000

               

43,000

               
1,541,000

          

1,073,000

          

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 19.77 million (2021: Rs. 17.99 million) in respect of charge for retirement benefit 
obligations.

Salaries and benefits include Rs. 1.80 million (2021: Rs. 1.50 million) in respect of charge for employer's contribution to
provident fund.
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27.3

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
28. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on long term finance 7,774,821          6,238,778          

Mark-up on short-term borrowings 146,168,030      143,804,477      

Interest on lease liability 1,676,785          5,861,753          

Unwinding of discount on long-term finance from related parties 15.2 9,918,132          9,674,126          

Workers' profit participation fund 20.2 299,326             70,413               

Bank charges, guarantee commission and other related charges 8,553,167          5,787,333          

174,390,261      171,436,880      

29. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' profit participation fund 20.2 28,773,940        12,275,733        

Workers' welfare fund 5,826,157          4,429,453          

Infrastructure cess 20.3 30,440,957        13,884,929        

Loss on modification of terms of financial asset 10.1 -                     20,816,370        

Exchange loss - net -                     1,232,230          

Unrealized loss on other financial assets 2,055,496          -                     

Other 297,000             -                     

67,393,550        52,638,715        

30. OTHER INCOME

Profit on deposits 5,521,448          3,448,187          

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,233,155          6,555,071          

Scrap sales 677,499             970,796             

Exchange gain - net 13,710,169        -                     

Other revenue 160,274             -                     

Unwinding of discount on other receivables 10.1 6,401,253          14,415,117        

Contract settlement 30.1 109,999,076      -                     

137,702,874      25,389,171        

30.1

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

31. TAXATION

Current

- for the year 31.3 125,193,345      56,722,427        

- prior year (1,377,511)         349,304             

123,815,834      57,071,731        

Deferred 18 (3,969,918)         5,985,904          

119,845,916      63,057,635        

During the year, certain suppliers defaulted on the cotton supply contract due to increase in cotton prices in the 
international market whereas the contracts were made at a significantly lower price. Upon such default, the Company 
negotiated with the suppliers and as a result the suppliers agreed to pay damages to the Company of Rs. 109.99 million 
out of which the Company has received Rs. 87.14 million till June 30, 2022.

No director or their spouse had any interest in the donees' fund. During the year, the Company has donated Rs. 1.55
million (2021: Rs. 1.14 million) to The Citizens Foundation.
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2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

31.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

551,852,771      222,858,732      

29% 29%

160,037,304      64,629,032        

Prior year tax adjustments (1,377,511)         349,304             

Permanent differences 4,147,038          (525,063)            

Impact of FTR income (44,151,929)       (3,300,234)         

Impact of tax credit on donations (581,060)            -                     

Adjustment of effective rate (12,058,147)       9,695,239          

Previously unrecognized tax depreciation loss recognized in current year -                     (8,423,415)         

Impact of utilisation of Minimum Tax credits under Section 113 (28,021,331)       -                     

Impact of super tax 42,202,831        -                     

Others (293,279)            632,772             

119,903,916      63,057,635        

31.2

31.3

32.  EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

2022 2021

Profit for the year Rupees 432,006,855      159,801,097      

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
    outstanding during the year 13 19,852,800        19,852,800        

Earnings per share
Rupees / 

Share
21.76                 8.05                   

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 12 5,875,276          8,370,748          

Short-term borrowings 22 (883,049,126) (1,215,020,482) 

(877,173,850) (1,206,649,734) 

Tax on accounting profit

Subsequent to the amendment of section 5(A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001, tax at the applicable rate shall be
imposed on every public company which derives profit for the year. However, this tax shall not apply in case of a company
which distributes at least specified percentage of after tax profits within six months of the end of the tax year in the form of
cash dividend. In 2019, the Company had obtained stay order from Sindh High Court (SHC) in respect of application of
such clause. During the year, SHC has passed an order and set aside show cause / demand notices seeking enforcement
of section 5(A).

There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss / earnings per share of the Company which is based on:

This includes super tax of Rs. 41.6 million (2021: Nil) as imposed by the Finance Act 2022.

Profit before taxation

Tax rate %
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37. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2022 2021

Total number of employees of the Company as at reporting date 771 787

Average number of employees of the Company during the year 786 769

Employee's working in Company's factory as at reporting date 733 748

Average number of employees working in Company's factory during the year 747 731

38. PROVIDENT FUND 

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per statement of financial position 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

Other financial assets 5,078,414         -                    

At amortised cost

Security deposits 3,129,361         2,887,987         

Trade debts 768,563,631     701,721,202     

Loans and advances 833,481            1,107,481         

Other receivables 27,741,677       127,664,600     

Other financial assets 129,394,620     97,094,620       
Cash and bank balances 5,875,276         8,370,748         

940,616,460     938,846,638     

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

At amortized cost

Long-term finance

- from banking companies 261,643,633     185,632,645     
- from related parties 96,739,869

       
88,821,737

       
Lease liability 9,729,346

         
29,408,329

       
Trade and other payables 174,185,377

     
99,473,740

       
Unclaimed dividend 2,899,903

         
2,424,885

         
Mark-up accrued 26,323,596

       
21,575,812

       
Short-term borrowings 883,049,126

     
1,215,020,482

  

1,454,570,850
  

1,642,357,630
  

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

-  Credit risk

-  Liquidity risk

-  Market risk

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30, 2022 and 2021 respectively are as follows:

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's financial risk
management. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight responsibility, management has been made responsible for
identifying, monitoring and managing the Company's financial risk exposures. The Company has exposure to the following
risks from its use of financial instruments:

At fair value through profit or loss

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.
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For the Year ended June 30, 2022



56

40.1

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

Security deposits 3,129,361
         

2,887,987
         

Trade debts 40.1.1 768,563,631
     

701,721,202
     

Loans and advances 40.1.2 833,481
            

1,107,481
         

Other receivables 27,741,677
       

127,664,600
     

Other financial assets 40.1.3 129,394,620
     

97,094,620
       

Bank balances 40.1.3 4,523,577
         

6,609,457
         

934,186,347
     

937,085,347
     

40.1.1

40.1.2

40.1.3

Bank Name Rating Agency Short term Long term

PACRA A1+ AA+

VIS A1 AA

VIS A1+ AA

PACRA A1+ AA+

PACRA A1+ AA+

PACRA A1 A

PACRA A1+ AAA

VIS A2 A-

PACRA A1 A+

VIS A1 A+

VIS A1+ AAA

PACRA A1+ AA-

VIS A1+ AAA

PACRA A1+ AAA

PACRA A1+ AA-

PACRA A1+ AA+

29-Jun-22

Date of Rating

Bank Al-Falah Limited 25-Jun-22

Samba Bank Limited 30-Jun-22

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

The trade debts at year end are due from local and foreign customers against local sales and export sales respectively.
Trade debt due from foreign customers are secured against letter of credit. For local customers management assesses
the credit quality of customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The
Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Company has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The Company establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) based on analysis of recovery pattern and
adjustment of trade debts secured against letter of credits.

Loans and advances

These include loans and advances given primarily to employees against salaries, which will be adjusted against their
future salaries or in case of resignation against their post retirement benefit balances.

Other financial assets and balances with banks

The Company deposits its funds and invests in term deposit receipts (other financial assets) with banks carrying good
credit standings assessed by reputable credit agencies. These banks are credit rated as follows:

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a
number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in
similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause
their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

Credit risk

Trade debts

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, other financial assets, other
receivables and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 25-Jun-22

The Bank of Punjab 18-Jun-22

MCB Islamic Bank Limited 23-Jun-22

National Bank of Pakistan 25-Jun-22

Silk bank Limited 23-Dec-21

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 24-Jun-22

Sindh Bank Limited 28-Jun-22

Meezan Bank Limited 29-Jun-22

J.S Bank Limited 23-Jun-22

Habib Bank Limited 29-Jun-22

Bank Al-Habib Limited 25-Jun-22

Soneri Bank Limited 25-Jun-22
Askari 25-Jun-22

UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2022



57

40.2

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments:

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

maturities 

 Maturity upto 

one year 

 Maturity after 

one year 

------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------

Long-term finance

  - from related parties 96,739,869 112,635,598 55,278,076 57,357,522 

  - from banking company 261,643,633 352,235,937 110,862,576 241,373,361 

Lease liability 9,729,346 10,661,050 - 8,317,563 2,343,488 

Trade and other payables 174,185,377 174,185,377 174,185,377 - 

Unclaimed dividend 2,899,903 2,899,903 2,899,903 - 

Markup accrued 26,323,596 26,323,596 26,323,596 - 

Short-term borrowings 883,049,126 883,049,126 883,049,126 - 

1,454,570,850 1,561,990,587 - 1,260,916,217 - 301,074,370 

 Carrying 
amount 

 Contractual 
maturities 

 Maturity upto 
one year 

 Maturity after 
one year 

------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------

Long-term financing

  - from related parties 88,821,737       118,113,823     14,894,598       103,219,225     

  - from banking company 185,632,645     195,592,540     96,071,779       99,520,761       

Lease liability 29,408,329       31,782,586       21,113,822       10,668,764       

Trade and other payables 99,473,740       99,473,740       99,473,740       -                    

Unclaimed dividend 2,424,885         2,424,885         2,424,885         -                    

Markup accrued 21,575,812       21,575,812       21,575,812       -                    

Short-term borrowings 1,215,020,482 1,215,020,482 1,215,020,482 -                    

1,642,357,630 1,683,983,868 - 1,470,575,118 213,408,750     

40.3

40.3.1

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as share price, foreign exchange rates and interest rates will
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Company is primarily exposed to
interest rate risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Company’s long-term financing, short-term borrowings, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, other
financial assets and bank balances in saving account.

2022

2021

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the
Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or would have difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances and availability of financing through banking arrangements. 

Liquidity risk

Interest rate risk

Market risk 
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2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets - at amortised cost       129,394,620         97,094,620 

Financial liabilities - at amortised cost       287,628,199       152,558,140 

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets - at amortised cost 86,100

              

107,534

            

Financial liabilities - at amortised cost 963,533,775

 

1,277,503,316

 

40.3.2

June 30, 2022
USD EURO Total

------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------

308,726,383     -                    308,726,383     

June 30, 2021

83,606,403
       

-
                    

83,606,403
       

Average rate Reporting date rate
2022 2021 2022 2021

USD 177.65 158.05 203.9/206.7 157.8/158.3
Euro 199.61 188.42 214.5/216.5 188.12/188.71

40.4

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions with foreign undertakings 
and bank balances in foreign currency. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows :

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Currency risk

Trade debts

At June 30, 2022, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar and Euro with all other 
variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 15.4 million (2021: Rs. 4.18
million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US Dollar and Euro - denominated trade
debts and trade payables.

----------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------

Capital risk management

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

At the reporting date the interest rate risk profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is:

Carrying Amount

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount
of dividend to the shareholders or issue bonus / new shares.

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base
to support the sustained development of its businesses.

A change of 50 basis points in KIBOR based financial liabilities at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased)
equity and profit before tax by Rs. 4.82 million (2021: Rs. 6.39 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables
remain constant.

Trade debts
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41. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

-   

-   

-   

As at June 30, 2022 the Company held the following instruements at fair values:

Level 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Total

Equity securities - listed           5,078,414                       -                         -             5,078,414 

Level 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Total

Equity securities - listed                       -                         -                         -                         -   

41.1

42. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------

Fair value

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

Fair value

------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------
Financial assets 

measured at fair 

Financial assets 

measured at fair 

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
               either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

The Company discloses the financial instruments measured in the balance sheet at fair value in accordance with
the following fair value hierarchy:

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arms length transaction.

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

There are no transfers between the levels during the year.

These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 5, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

There are no other assets or liabilities to classify under above levels except the Company's land, mill building, labour
colony, plant and machinery, electric installations and factory equipment are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair
value at the date of revaluation, less subsequent depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
fair value measurements of these assets carried out as at June 30, 2021, were performed by Tristar International
Consultant (Pvt.) Ltd. not related to the Company. The valuer is listed on panel of Pakistan Banks Association and they
have appropriate qualification and experience in the fair value measurement of properties, plant and machinery. Value
determined by independent valuer is classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the consolidated financial 

statements
 

of Idrees Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and its Subsidiary 

Company, ORA Home LLC (ORA),  together referred to as ‘Group’ for the year ended 30 
June 2022. The Holding Company has annexed its consolidated financial statements along 

with its separate financial statements, in accordance with the requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards and Companies Act, 2017. The Directors’ Report on the 

unconsolidated financial statements of the Holding Company contains a review on the 
performance of Idrees Textile Mills Limited  for the year ended 30 June 2022. It also includes 

a brief description of the subsidiary company.
 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board  

                                        

 

 

 

Muhammad Idrees Allawala                                           S. M. Mansoor Allawala 

Chairman              Chief Executive  

Karachi: October  05 , 2022 
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Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

ASSETS

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 2,334,249,192      2,046,046,950      
Long-term deposits 3,129,361             2,887,987             

2,337,378,553      2,048,934,937      
Current Assets

Stores, spares and loose tools 5 57,521,846           43,809,657           
Stock-in-trade 6 1,207,120,704      1,090,119,992      
Trade debts 7 768,563,631         701,721,202         
Loans and advances 8 171,739,107         83,520,710           
Prepayments 1,905,463

             
1,871,858

             
Other receivables 9 184,464,687

         
154,695,934

         
Other financial assets 10 134,473,034

         
97,094,620

           
Cash and bank balances 11 18,215,039

           
8,370,748

             
2,544,003,511

      
2,181,204,721

      
Total Assets 4,881,382,064

      
4,230,139,658

      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorised capital

22,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 220,000,000
         

220,000,000
         

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 12 198,528,000
         

198,528,000
         

Capital reserves

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax 13 882,490,524
         

910,719,758
         Equity portion of loan from related parties 15,895,730

           
25,813,862

           
Revenue reserves

Exchange translation reserves (2,366,429)

            

-

                       Unappropriated profit 1,406,774,561

      

951,551,923

         Total Equity 2,501,322,386

      

2,086,613,543

      
Non-current Liabilities

Long-term finance 14 214,521,468

         

169,100,200

         Lease liability 15 1,962,284

             

10,140,260

           Deferred government grant 16 44,261,234

           

-

                       Deferred taxation - net 17 229,182,802

         

252,700,211

         Retirement benefit obligation 18 60,143,460

           

54,932,453

           550,071,248

         

486,873,124

         Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 19 617,700,712

         

236,390,906

         
Accrued mark-up 20 26,323,596

           

21,575,812

           
Short-term borrowings 21 901,048,156

         

1,215,020,482

      
Current portion of long-term finance 14 143,862,034

         

105,354,182

         
Current portion of lease liability 15 7,767,062

             

19,268,069

           
Current portion of deferred government grant 16 5,297,394

             

-

                       
Unclaimed dividend 2,899,903

             

2,424,885

             
Provision for taxation 125,089,573

         

56,618,655

           
1,829,988,430

      

1,656,652,991

      
Total Liabilities 2,380,059,678

      

2,143,526,115

      Total Equity and Liabilities 4,881,382,064

      

4,230,139,658

      CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

Revenue from contract with customer - net 23 5,177,898,639
     

4,002,482,731
     

Cost of sales 24 (4,376,937,319)
    

(3,468,653,953)
    

-
                       

Gross profit 800,961,320
        

533,828,778
        

Distribution cost 25 (45,848,895)
         

(35,219,989)
         

Administrative expenses 26 (96,757,796)
         (77,063,633)

         

(142,606,691)       (112,283,622)       

658,354,629        421,545,156        

Finance cost 27 (174,390,261)       (171,436,880)       

Impairment of goodwill 1.3 (16,937,368)         -                       

Other operating expenses 28 (68,787,153)         (52,638,715)         
-                       

398,239,847        197,469,561        

Other income 29 139,969,024        25,389,171          
-                       

Profit before taxation 538,208,871        222,858,732        

Taxation 30 (119,845,916)       (63,057,635)         

Profit for the year 418,362,955        159,801,097        

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment during the year -                       384,049,417        
Impact of deferred tax thereon -                       (54,171,243)         

-                       329,878,174        

Adjustment of surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
due to change in tax rate 13 19,262,595          (7,130,328)           

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation 18.5 (982,374)              6,582,947            
Related tax 17 284,896               (1,909,055)           

(697,478)              4,673,892            

18,565,117          327,421,738        
Items that may be reclassified subsequently 

to profit or loss

Foreign operations - foreign currency translation difference (2,366,429)
           

-
                       

16,198,688
          

327,421,738
        

Total comprehensive income for the year 434,561,643
        

487,222,835
        

Earnings per share - basic and diluted
31 21.07

                   
8.05

                     

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year ended June 30, 2022

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2022 2021
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note Rupees Rupees

Profit before taxation 538,208,871          222,858,732          

Adjustments for :

Depreciation 4.1 105,294,291          91,871,591            
Provision for retirement benefit obligation 18.4 19,765,793            17,985,959            
Finance cost 27 174,390,261          171,436,880          
Provision for slow moving stores, spares and loose tools 5.1 1,368,396              -                         
Unrealized loss on other financial assets 28 2,055,496              -                         
Profit on deposits 29 (5,521,448)             (3,448,187)             
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 29 (1,233,155)

             
(6,555,071)

             
Finance cost on unwinding of discount on long-term finance from related parties 29 (6,401,253)

             
(14,415,117)

           
Loss on modification of terms of financial asset 28 -

                         
20,816,370

            
Impairment of goodwill 16,937,368

            
-

                         
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 844,864,620

          
500,551,157

          

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools (15,080,585)
           

3,771,325
              Stock-in-trade (108,169,813)

         
447,937,922

          Trade debts (61,327,536)
           

80,376,979
            Loans and advances (78,270,764)

           
(2,764,239)

             Prepayments (33,605)
                  

414,850
                 Other receivables (21,711,462)

           
(94,652,134)

           

(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 364,822,392
          

(157,106,792)
         80,228,627

            
277,977,911

          Cash generated from operations 925,093,247

          
778,529,068

          
Finance cost paid (158,047,560)

         

(202,333,565)

         Retirement benefit obligation paid (16,402,660)

           

(9,089,500)

             Income tax paid (65,292,553)

           

(56,659,505)

           Long-term deposits - net (241,374)

                

(121,745)

                Net cash generated from operating activities 685,109,100

          

510,324,753

          
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (394,050,878)

         

(88,660,081)

           Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,787,500

              

22,648,000

            Purchase of term deposit receipt - net (32,300,000)

           

(23,348,300)

           Purchase of shares (7,133,910)

             

-

                         Profit on deposits received 3,865,410

              

3,434,826

              Net cash acquired on business combination 1.3 176,531

                 

-

                         Net cash used in investing activities (427,655,347)

         

(85,925,555)

           
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-term finance repaid to financial institutions (83,604,014)

           

(46,041,049)

           
Long-term finance obtained from financial institutions 209,173,634

          

99,287,300

            
Long-term finance repaid to related parties (2,000,000)

             

(35,226,790)

           
Long-term finance obtained from related parties -

                         

6,000,000

              
Lease liabilities repaid during the year (21,355,768)

           

(35,411,488)

           
Dividend paid (19,377,782)

           

-

                         Net cash generated from financing activities 82,836,070

            

(11,392,027)

           Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 340,289,823

          

413,007,171

          
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1,206,649,734)

 

(1,619,656,905)

 Effects of exchange rate changes in cash and cash equivalents 1,525,824

              

-

                         Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 32 (864,834,087)

         

(1,206,649,734)

      The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the Year ended June 30, 2022

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

Total 

Note

Balance as at July 1, 2020 198,528,000       633,848,096       33,586,069         731,526,624       -                      1,597,488,789    

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year -                      -                      -                      159,801,097       -                      159,801,097       

Other comprehensive income for the year -                      322,747,846       -                      4,673,892           -                      327,421,738       

-                      322,747,846       164,474,989       487,222,835       

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property

plant and equipment on account of 

- incremental depreciation charged thereon - net of tax 13 -                      (45,876,184)        -                      45,876,184         -                      -                      

Transactions with related parties

Unwinding of discount on long-term loan 14.2

from related parties -                      -                      (9,674,126)          9,674,126           -                      -                      

Fair value effect of interest free loan provided

by related parties 14.2 -                      -                      1,901,919           -                      -                      1,901,919           

Balance as at June 30, 2021 198,528,000       910,719,758       25,813,862         951,551,923       -                      2,086,613,543    

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year -                      -                      -                      418,362,955       -                      418,362,955       

Other comprehensive income for the year -                      19,262,595         -                      (697,478)             (2,366,429)          16,198,688         

-                      19,262,595         -                      417,665,477       (2,366,429)          434,561,643       

Transfer to / from surplus on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment on account of 

- incremental depreciation charged thereon - net of tax 13 -                      (47,491,829)        -                      47,491,829         -                      -                      

Transaction with owners recognized directly in equity

Transactions with shareholders

Final dividend at Re.1 per share for the year ended June 30, 2021 -                      -                      -                      (19,852,800)        -                      (19,852,800)        

Transactions with related parties

Unwinding of discount on long-term loan

from related parties 14.2 -                      -                      (9,918,132)          9,918,132           -                      -                      

Fair value effect of interest free loan provided

by related parties 14.2 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Balance as at June 30, 2022 198,528,000       882,490,524       15,895,730         1,406,774,561    (2,366,429)          2,501,322,386    

(198,528,000)   (863,233,622)   (15,895,729)     (989,101,390)   
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements. 19,256,902      1                      #REF!

#REF!

 Unappropriated

profit 

---------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------

Capital 

reserve

 Share

capital 

Surplus on 

revaluation of 

property, plant 

and equipment - 

net of tax

Equity portion of 

loan from 

related parties

Revenue reserves

 Exchange 

translation 

reserve 
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CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2022

1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1

1.2

Karachi Purpose

Head Office

Nankana Sahib Purpose

Regional Office and Production Plant / Factory

New Jersey, USA Purpose

Registered Office

1.3 Business combination

USD PKR
Assets

Stock-in-trade 52,286
               

9,230,173
          Trade receivable 25,000

               
4,413,284

          Cash in hand 1,000

                 

176,531

             78,286

               

13,819,988

        
Liabilities

Loan from related parties 91,061

               

16,075,147

        
Trade and other payables 83,171

               

14,682,210

        
174,232

             

30,757,357

        
Fair value of net assets acquired / liabilities assumed (95,946)

              

(16,937,369)

       Consideration paid -

                     

-

                     Goodwill recognised on acquisition 95,946

               

16,937,369

        

Impairment of goodwill * (95,946)

              

(16,937,369)

       

The Group consists of Idrees Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and its 100% owned subsidiary ORA Home LLC
(ORA) (the Subsidiary). Together referred to as "the Group" and individually as "Group entities". 

The Holding Company paid nil consideration for the acquisition of subsidiary due to net liability position in the books of
subsidiary and accordingly assumed all liabilities of the subsidiary as on January 5, 2022. Fair value of net
assets/(liabilities) acquired, is as follows:

Kot Shah Muhammad, Tehsil & District 
Nankana Punjab

6-C, Ismail Centre, 1st floor, Central Commercial 
Area, Bahadurabad

Following is the geographical location and address of the Subsidiary:

4 Conklin Lane Raritan, New Jersey 08869-2315

During the year, the Holding Company acquired 100% ownership in ORA Home LLC (ORA), a limited liability company
incorporated in New Jersey, USA on January 5, 2022. One of the directors of the Holding Company is the member
manager of ORA. Pursuant to the acquisition, ORA has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company. ORA is
engaged in import/export, warehousing and wholesale of textile products.

The Holding Company was incorporated in Pakistan as an unquoted public limited company on June 5, 1990 under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on
April 28, 1992. The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at 6-C, Ismail Centre, 1st floor, Central
Commercial Area, Bahadurabad, Karachi in the Province of Sindh. The principal activity of the Holding Company is
manufacturing, processing and sale of all kinds of yarn. 

Following are the geographical location and address of all business units of the Holding Company:

Net goodwill -

                     

-

                     * Goodwill has been impaired and impairment has been recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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CONSOLIDATED  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2022

2.

2.1

-

-

2.2

2.3 Basis  of consolidation

Subsidiaries

2.4

2.5

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to or has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity generally accompanying a share of more than fifty percent of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and up to the date when the control ceases. These consolidated
financial statements include Idrees Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary entity ORA Home LLC,
i.e., the entity in which the Holding Company directly owns 100%. Accordingly, there is no non-controlling interest.

The financial statements of the Subsidiary have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis. Inter-company balances and
transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction gains or losses) arising
from inter-company transactions, are eliminated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except that certain
categories of property, plant and equipment are stated at revalued amounts and the Group's liability under defined benefit
plan (gratuity) is stated at present value of defined benefit obligation.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees,
which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been
rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Presentation and functional currency

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of; 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with requirements of IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Statement of compliance

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
that have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements and estimates with significant risk of material

Use of estimates and judgements

- assumptions and estimates used in accounting for defined benefit plan (notes 3.12 and 18);

judgment in the next financial year are set forth below:
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-

-

-

-

-

-

2.6

2.6.1

-

-

2.6.2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

-

-

Amendments to 'IAS 12 Income Taxes' - Amendments regarding deferred tax 
on leases and decommissioning obligations

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions extended beyond June 30, 2021

IFRS 1  'First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards'

IFRS 17  'Insurance Contracts'

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the SECP:

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors' - Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of 
accounting policies

Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before 
intended use

assumptions and estimates used in determining fair value, residual value, useful lives and recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment (notes 3.1, 3.8 and 4.1);

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of 
liabilities as current or non-current

January 01, 2023

The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022, however, these amendments are either not
relevant to the Group's operations or do not significantly impact the Group's consolidated financial statements other than
certain additional disclosure.

Changes in accounting standards and interpretations

Effective from accounting period 

beginning on or after:

New accounting standards and amendments that are not yet effective

assumptions and estimates used in determining provision for slow moving stores and spares (notes 3.2 and 5.1);

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets' - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

The following amendments are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each
of them. These amendments are either not relevant to the Group's operations or are not expected to have significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

impairment of financial assets (notes 3.5.4).

assumptions and estimates used in writing down items of stock-in-trade to their net realizable value (notes 3.3 and
6);

assumptions and estimates used in determining provision for taxation including deferred taxation (notes 3.13, 17 and
30);

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the 
conceptual framework

contingencies and commitments (note 22); and
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3.

3.1

3.1.1

-

-

-

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below:

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis at the rates specified in note 4.1.
Depreciation on additions is charged from the month an asset is available for use upto the month prior to its disposal.

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially
from the estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related
surplus on revaluation of assets (net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings (unappropriated profit).
Further, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the
particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings (unappropriated profit).

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and is recognised in
other income / other expenses in the statement of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, any related amount
included in the surplus on revaluation is transferred to retained earnings (unappropriated profit).

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each item of property, plant and equipment that is significant in
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date.

Surplus on revaluation of assets is recognised net of tax, in statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) and presented
as a separate component of equity as “surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment”, except that it reverses a
revaluation deficit for the same asset previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the surplus is
credited to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit charged previously.

Deficit on revaluation of assets is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except that it reverses a revaluation surplus
for the same asset previously recognised in statement of other comprehensive income, in which case the deficit is charged
to other comprehensive income to the extent of the surplus credited previously. The revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to the Holding Company’s shareholders.

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work-in-progress

Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalized and the asset so
replaced is derecognised. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period
in which they are incurred.

Building, Labour colony, plant and machinery, electric installations and mill equipment are stated at revalued
amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any; and

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, and consists of expenditure incurred and advances
made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant
asset categories as and when assets are available for intended use.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset including borrowing costs, if any. When
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Land is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any;

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures and vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment  losses, if any.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3.1.2

3.2

3.3

-   Raw material (imported)

-   Raw material (local)

-   Stock-in-transit

-   Work-in-process and finished goods

-   Waste

3.4

3.5

3.5.1

At amortized cost (“AC”),

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). 

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less
loss allowance, if any. The Group measures the loss allowance for trade debts at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses (ECL). The expected credit losses on trade debts are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. 

Net realisable value (NRV)

Leased assets

Classification of financial assets

Financial instruments

Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written off.

The Group classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

Net realizable value (NRV) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the net estimated
costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the net estimated costs
necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods represents annual average manufacturing cost which consists of
prime cost and appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Stock-in-trade

Stores, spares and loose tools 

Plant and machinery acquired under finance lease is stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Vehicles acquired under finance lease are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Assets that will be transferred at the end of the lease term are depreciated over the useful life of
the assets commencing from the year in which the leased assets are put into operation. Depreciation and other policies are
same as for the owned assets described above.

These are stated at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value, less allowance for obsolete and slow moving
items (if any). Items in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon upto the
reporting date. Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on the
management’s estimate regarding their future usability.

These are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value applying the following basis:

Cost signifies in relation to:

Trade debts and other receivables

Lower of cost (weighted average) and NRV

Lower of cost (specific identification basis) and net realisable value 
(NRV) 

Lower of cost and NRV

Cost accumulated up to reporting date
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1)

2)

1)

2)

3.5.2

3.5.3

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus
the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not  designated as FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated using the
effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, only dividend income is recognised in income statement. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis.

FVTOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognised in OCI.

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

All other financial assets are classified at FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and debt securities not classified
either as AC or FVTOCI).

Financial assets at amortised cost

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of assets and liabilities when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Recognition and initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL
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3.5.4

–

–

3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.6 Business combination

The Group accounts for business combination using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The
consideration transferred (including contingent consideration) in the year of acquisition is measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill acquired is not amortized but tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a
bargain purchase is recognized in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related
to the issue of debt or equity securities. When the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete at the end of
a reporting period, provisional amounts are used. During the measurement period, the provisional amounts are
retrospectively adjusted and additional assets and liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about the
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date which would have affected the measurement of the amounts
recognized at that date, had they been known. The measurement period does not exceed twelve months from the date of
acquisition.

All financial assets at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income.

For debt instruments classified as financial assets at FVTOCI, the amounts in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to income statement on derecognition of financial assets. This treatment is in contrast to equity instruments classified as
financial assets at FVTOCI, where there is no reclassification on derecognition.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Under expected credit loss (ECL) model of IFRS 9, the Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets.
The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at
12-month ECLs: 

Impairment of financial assets

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. The
effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Derecognition

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in the income statement.

Impairment

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

Other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset) has
not increased significantly since initial recognition.
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3.7 Goodwill

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.12.1

3.12.2

In a business combination, goodwill is recognised at the acquisition date and measured at the fair value of consideration
paid less the fair value of net assets acquired. After initial recognition, it is carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if
any. Goodwill is assessed annually for impairment.

Defined benefit plan

Retirement benefit obligation

Cash and cash equivalents

Provisions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated into reporting currency
equivalents using foreign currency rates ruling on the reporting date. Exchange differences on foreign currency
transactions and translation are included in the income currently. 

Impairment of non-financial assets

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The Holding Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then defined
benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit
payments. Interest expense and current service cost are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Holding Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its factory workers who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme. the Holding Company's obligation under the scheme is
determined through actuarial valuation carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Remeasurements which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Defined contribution plan

The Holding Company operates an approved funded contributory provident fund scheme for all head office staff. Equal
monthly contributions are made both by the Holding Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary per
annum.

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present, legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents used in statement of cash flows include cash in hand balances with banks in current and
deposit accounts and short term borrowings. Short-term borrowings availed by the Group, are payable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and inventories are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment
loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.13

3.13.1

3.13.2

3.14

3.15 Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign operations

Translation gains and losses

3.16

3.17

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated into reporting currency
equivalents using foreign currency rates ruling on the reporting date.  

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to Pakistani rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of
the statement of financial position. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Pakistani Rupees at
average rates of exchange prevailing during the year.

Gains and losses arising from foreign currency translations are taken to the profit and loss account, except those arising from the

translation of the net investment in foreign subsidiaries, which are recognized through the statement of other comprehensive

income as an Exchange Translation Reserve (ETR). Balances in the ETR are only taken to the profit and loss account on the

disposal of the investment.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of
the respective assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The Group manufactures and contracts with customers for the sale of yarn and other goods which generally include single
performance obligation. Management has assessed that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, which is when the goods are dispatched to the customer in case of
local sales and date of bill of lading in case of export sales.

Revenue recognition

Borrowing costs

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary difference between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred
tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Current tax

Taxation

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after taking into account tax
rebates and tax credits available, if any, or turnover at the specified rate or Alternate Corporate Tax as defined in section
113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. Charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessment framed / finalized during the year. However, for income
covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

The Group recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits in the foreseeable future will
be available against which the assets can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Further, the Group also recognizes a deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

Deferred tax
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3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive
received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight line method over the assets economic life. The right-of-use
asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease  liability. 

Leases - Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

The Holding Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Group recognises leases as a right-of-use asset and corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

The lease liability is subsequently measured (at amortised cost) by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability using the effective interest method and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an
index or rate, change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or
loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

For short term leases and leases of low / immaterial value assets, the Group recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Interest income is accrued on time proportionate basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable
effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment have been established and is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and included in other income.

Earnings per share

Dividend and appropriation to / from reserves

Dividend income

Dividend distribution to the Holding Company's shareholders and appropriations to / from reserves is recognised in the
period in which these are approved.

Government grants are recognised at fair value, as deferred income, when there is reasonable assurance that the grants
will be received and the Group will be able to comply with the conditions associated with the grants.

In accordance with IFRS 9 the benefit of interest rate lower than the market rate on borrowings obtained under State Bank
of Pakistan (SBP) Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employees of the entity and
Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF), is accounted for as a government grant which is the difference between
amount of loan received and the fair value of the loan on the date of disbursement. The differential amount presented in
statement of financial position as deferred government grant. The amortisation of deferred government grant is netted off
with finance cost within in the statement of profit or loss.

Government grants
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3.23

3.24

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets

- Owned 4.1.1 1,940,313,063 1,964,381,190 

- Right of use assets 4.1.2 37,614,719        75,948,660        

1,977,927,782   2,040,329,850   

Advance against vehicle 4.1.3 17,340,000        5,717,100          

Capital work in progress:

- Building 125,529,930      -                     

- Plant & Machinery 213,451,480      -                     

4.1.4 338,981,410      -                     

2,334,249,192 2,046,046,950 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses that relates to transactions with any of the other components of the Group. 

The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group have been identified as the chief operating decision-
makers (CODM), who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments.
Management has determined that the Group has a single reportable segment as the CODM views the Group's operations
as one reportable segment.

Commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
at committed amounts. Commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are
expressed in rupee terms at committed amounts.

Segment reporting

Commitments

A loan is initially recognised and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires loans at below-
market rates to be initially measured at their fair value - e.g. the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted
at a market-related interest rate. The benefit, that is the government grant, is measured as the difference between the fair
value of the loan on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according to the nature of the grant.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred, are recognised on a systematic basis in the income for the year
in which the related expenses are recognised. Grants that compensate for the cost of an asset are recognised in income
on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

5. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores and spares 53,044,427

        

45,950,186

        

Stores and spares in transit 12,156,051

        

4,169,707

          

Loose tools 64,585

               

64,585

               

65,265,063

        

50,184,478

        

Less: provision for slow moving items 5.1 (7,743,217)

         

(6,374,821)

         

57,521,846

        

43,809,657

        

5.1 Movement in provision for slow moving items

Balance as at July 1, 6,374,821
          

6,374,821
          

Provision made during the year 24 1,368,396
          

-
                     

 

Balance as at June 30, 7,743,217
          

6,374,821
          

6. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material

- In hand 787,024,122
      

785,996,519
      

- In transit 99,948,162
        

155,372,804
      

Work-in-process 56,022,198        41,992,838        

Finished goods

- In hand 163,228,844      61,419,155        

- In transit 27,545,324        -                     

- Third party 57,888,374        39,370,268        

Waste 15,463,680        5,968,408          

1,207,120,704   1,090,119,992   

6.1

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

7. TRADE DEBTS 

Considered good

Export - secured 308,726,383
      

83,606,403
        

Local 459,837,248
      

618,114,799
      

7.1 768,563,631
      

701,721,202
      

Considered doubtful

Local 12,413,215
        

12,413,215
        

780,976,846
      

714,134,417
      Less: Provision for doubtful debts 7.2 (12,413,215)

       
(12,413,215)

       
768,563,631

      

701,721,202

      

7.1

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

7.2

Balance as at July 1, 12,413,215

        

12,413,215

        
Provision made during the year -

                     

-

                     Balance as at June 30, 12,413,215

        

12,413,215

        

Provision on stock-in-trade during the year was nil (2021: nil).

Movement in provision for doubtful debts

Trade debts are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 to 90 days terms. Trade debts are unsecured other than the
export and local trade debts that are secured against letter of credits as mentioned in note 7.4.
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2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

7.3

0 - 90 days 766,818,903

      

573,107,254

      

91-180 days 10,001,125

        

87,222,961

        

181 - 360 days 1,779,918

          

51,427,302

        

Above 360 days 2,376,900

          

2,376,900

          

780,976,846

      

714,134,417

      

7.4

Amount in Rupees

Confirmed LC

Confirmed LC

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

8. LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Considered good

Loans to employees - unsecured 8.1 359,000             632,000             

Advance to employees 8.1 474,481             475,481             

Advances - unsecured 

- to suppliers 93,029,920        19,923,795        
- for expenses 6,602,942          1,164,303          

99,632,862        21,088,098        
Advance income tax 71,272,764        61,325,131        

171,739,107      83,520,710        

8.1 These represents unsecured, interest free, short-term loan and advance given to employees of the Holding Company.

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

9. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax 

- considered good 150,850,078
      

21,158,402
        - considered doubtful 2,630,629

          
2,630,629

          

Export rebate - considered doubtful 2,194,344
          

2,194,344
          Duty draw back receivable 5,872,932

          
5,872,932

          Cotton claim receivable 29.1 22,851,349

        
3,279,126

          Profit on deposits 3,757,270

          

2,101,232

          Others 9.1 1,133,058

          

122,284,242

      
189,289,660

      

159,520,907

      Less: provision for doubtful receivables 9.2 (4,824,973)

         

(4,824,973)

         184,464,687

      

154,695,934

      
9.1 In previous year, the Holding Company entered into an agreement with a customer whereby overdue balance as of January

1, 2021 was to be paid in instalments until December 31, 2021. This resulted in modification in terms of financial assets and
therefore, the Holding Company had recognized modification loss, as disclosed in note 28. As at June 30, 2021, the
outstanding balance was Rs. 120.58 million. During the year, the customer repaid full amount as per the agreement and the
current balance is presented under trade debts.

308,726,383
                                     

Ageing of trade debts past due but not impaired

Following are the details for local and export related trade debts outstanding as at June 30 2022, which are secured against
 letter of credit:

Exports

Indirect Export

Mode of arrangement

44,780,578
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
9.2 Provision for doubtful receivables

As at July 01, 2021           4,824,973           4,824,973 

Provision recognized during the year                        -                          -   

As at June 30, 2022           4,824,973           4,824,973 

10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

- At amoritised cost

Term deposit receipts 10.1       129,394,620 97,094,620

        

- Fair value through profit or loss

Short term investment in listed company 10.2           5,078,414 -
                     

134,473,034
      

97,094,620
        

10.1

10.2

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 1,351,699          1,761,291          

Cash at banks
Local currency

    -  in current accounts 11.1 16,777,240        6,578,622          
    -  in savings account 11.2 86,100               30,835               

18,215,039        8,370,748          

11.1

11.2

12. SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021 2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

   Authorised

22,000,000 22,000,000 220,000,000 220,000,000

   Issued, subscribed and paid-up

19,852,800 19,852,800 198,528,000 198,528,000

      

12.1

   paid in cash

The Holding Company has one class of ordinary share, which carry equal voting rights but no right to fixed income. Voting
rights, board selection etc. are in proportion to their shareholding.

This includes an amount of Rs. 6.68 million (2021: Rs. 6.68 million) on which the bank has created lien on account of
guarantee provided by such bank as disclosed in note 22.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Number of shares

It carries markup of 12.25% (2021: 6.56%) per annum.

   Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

   Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully

This represents investment in shares of Lucky Cement Limited a listed company on Pakistan Stock Exchange. Shares
acquired during the year and held as at June 30, 2022 are 11,000 at a cost of Rs. 7,133,910. The shares are categorised
under fair value through profit and loss account as the Group intends to receive short term profits through trading of shares.
The unrealized loss as at June 30, 2022 was Rs. 2,055,496. 

These represent term deposit receipts with various banks for a period ranging from six months to one year carrying mark-up
at the rates ranging from 5.90% to 13.75% (2021: 6.25% to 9%) per annum. The banks have lien on these term deposit
receipts on account of guarantees provided by such banks as disclosed in note 22.1.1 to the consolidated financial
statements. These will mature latest by June 16, 2023 (2021: June 09, 2022).
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

13. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND

 EQUIPMENT - net of tax

As at July 1, 1,094,962,264   769,235,102      

Surplus arising during the year -                     384,049,417      

Less: transferred to unappropriated profit on account of:

- incremental depreciation - net of tax (47,491,829)       (45,876,184)       

- related deferred tax liability (11,220,008)       (12,446,071)       

- disposals - net of tax -                     -                     

- related deferred tax liability -                     -                     

(58,711,837)       (58,322,255)       

As at June 30 1,036,250,427   1,094,962,264   

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

Revaluation surplus as at July 1, 184,242,506      135,387,006      

Surplus arising during the year 17 -                     54,171,243        

Adjustment due to change in tax rate 17 (19,262,595)       7,130,328          

Incremental depreciation charged during the year (11,220,008)       (12,446,071)       

Assets disposed-off during the year -                     -                     

17 153,759,903      184,242,506      

As at June 30 882,490,524      910,719,758      

14. LONG-TERM FINANCE

Long term portion

Financial institutions 14.1 173,059,675      95,173,061        

Related parties 14.2 41,461,793        73,927,139        

214,521,468      169,100,200      

Current portion

Financial institutions 14.1 88,583,958        90,459,584        

14.2 55,278,076        14,894,598        

143,862,034      105,354,182      

Related parties
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14.1.1

14.1.2

14.1.3

14.1.4

14.1.5

14.1.6

14.1.7

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
14.2 Loan from related parties - unsecured

Opening as at July 01, 88,821,737    110,276,320  

Receipts during the year 14.2.1 -                 6,000,000      

Repayments during the year 14.2.2 (2,000,000)     (35,226,790)   

Unwinding of discount 27 9,918,132      9,674,126      

Release of equity portion of loan due to change in terms of loan -                 -                 

Less: Fair value adjustment -                 (1,901,919)     

96,739,869    88,821,737    

Payable within one year (55,278,076)   (14,894,598)   

Closing as at June 30, 41,461,793    73,927,139    

14.2.1

14.2.2

The loan is for financing salaries and wages under SBP Refinance Scheme. The loan is secured against existing land
and building and plant and machinery of the Holding Company with 25% margin.

The loan is secured by way of first exclusive and specific hypothecation charge over imported machinery of the Holding
Company (Compact Spinning Assembly) with 0% margin.

The loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge over Compact Spinning, imported Gen set and locally purchased
carding machines with 0% to 25% margin.

The loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge over weaving dust and waste removal machine with 0% to 25%
margin.

These represent plant and machinery and vehicles acquired under musharaka arrangement. The rates of mark-up
ranges from 9.46% to 17.82%. 

The Holding Company has entered into a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) agreement with an Islamic
bank and conventional banks, with the total limit aggregating to Rs. 615.37 million (2021: 600 million). This includes
Rs.150 million being the sub-facility under the letter of credit facility agreement amounting to Rs. 175 million with the
Islamic bank. The unavailed facility as at year end was Rs. 451.07 million (2021: 600). These facilities carry mark up of
SBP Base Rate + 4% (2021: SBP Base Rate + 4%). The tenure of these facilities ranges from 5 to 10 years with grace
period up to 2 years. These facilities are secured against various assets including exclusive charge over imported
machinery, first pari passu charge over land & building, hypothecation charge over specific equipment and machinery,
and also the personal guarantee of all the directors and mortgagors of the Holding Company.

The loan is obtained to meet the capital expenditure requirement of the Holding Company. The loan is secured by way of
first exclusive and specific hypothecation charge over imported machinery of the Holding Company. The unavailed facility
available as at June 30, 2021 is Rs. 48.71 million.

In year ended June 30, 2021 the Holding Company obtained loan amounting to Rs. 6 million from the directors of the
Holding Company as per the agreement signed on December 15, 2020. These loans are interest free, unsecured and are
expected to be repaid by the end of December 14, 2024. Using the discount rate of 10% per annum, the fair value of the
loans is estimated at Rs. 4.1 million. The difference of Rs. 1.9 million is recognized in equity in this regard. 

During the year, the Holding Company has repaid loan amounting to Rs. 2 million to directors and their closed family
members.

The interest (i.e., unwinding of the difference between present value on initial recognition and the amount received) is
being recognized on the loan in the statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method.
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Due Date Loan 

received

Present value

June 30, 2022     12,894,598     12,894,598 

June 03, 2023     22,551,000     19,609,565 

June 30, 2023     26,190,000     22,773,913 

December 08, 2023     45,000,000     36,625,053 

December 14, 2024       6,000,000       4,836,740 

112,635,598
  

96,739,869
    

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
15. LEASE LIABILITY

Present value of minimum lease payments 15.1 9,729,346
      

29,408,329
    

Less: current portion shown under current liabilities (7,767,062)
     

(19,268,069)
   

1,962,284      10,140,260    

15.1

Not later than one year 8,535,294          768,232 7,767,062   21,113,822  1,845,753      19,268,069    
Later than one year but not 111

     later than five years     2,091,437       129,153    1,962,284 10,668,764           528,504     10,140,260 

  10,626,731       897,385    9,729,346   31,782,586       2,374,257     29,408,329 

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

16. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT

Deferred grant against temporary economic refinance facility 49,558,628

    

-

                 Current portion of deferred government grant (5,297,394)

     

-

                 44,261,234

    

-

                 

16.1

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees ----------------------- -------------------------------

Total future minimum lease 
   payments

2021

Future 

minimum 

lease 

payments

Finance 

cost

Present 

value

Future 
minimum 

lease 
payments

Finance 
cost

Present value

Deferred government grant relates to the difference between the fair value and actual proceed of temporary economic
refinance facility loan obtained under SBP's refinance scheme. It is being amortised over the period of ten years from the
date of loan disbursement with an amount equal to the difference between the finance cost charged that would have
been charged to statement of profit or loss at market rate and the interest paid as per the scheme.

The rates of mark-up ranges from 9.46% to 10.38% (2021: 9.46% to 10.38%) per annum and are used as discounting
factor. The lease terms are upto 3 years. The Group intends to exercise its option to purchase the leased assets upon
completion of the lease period. Liabilities are secured against leased assets, demand promissory notes and security
deposits.

2022

As at June 30, 2022, the loans received from directors are due to be paid as follows, unless otherwise the terms of
repayment are further extended:

These represent plant and machinery and vehicles acquired under leases from leasing companies and financial
institutions. Future minimum lease payments under lease together with the present value of the net minimum lease
payments are as follows:
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
17. DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 1, 252,700,211      183,503,681      

Reversal to profit or loss 30 (3,969,918)         5,985,904          

Charged to other comprehensive income (284,896)            1,909,055          

Adjustment to the related deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus 13 -                     54,171,243        

Tax rate adjustment on surplus 13 (19,262,595)       7,130,328          

Balance as at June 30, 229,182,802      252,700,211      

This comprises of the following:

Taxable temporary differences:

- accelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment 130,976,597      142,440,082      

- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 153,759,903      184,242,507      

284,736,500      326,682,589      

Deductible temporary differences:

- provision for doubtful trade debts 2,372,048          3,599,832          

- provision for stores and spares 1,479,656          1,360,398          

- carried forward depreciation loss -                     8,423,415          

- provision for doubtful other receivables 922,007             1,399,242          

- provision for staff gratuity 11,492,847        12,323,664        

- minimum tax 34,204,334        46,875,827        

- WWF liability 4,690,738          -                     

- Other financial asset 392,068             -                     

       (55,553,698)        (73,982,378)

229,182,802      252,700,211      

18. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Mill 18.2 59,891,088        54,680,081        

Head office 18.1              252,372 252,372             

60,143,460        54,932,453        

18.1

2022 2021
The principal assumptions used are as follows:

-  Discount rate 13.25% 10.00%

-  Expected rate of salary increase 12.25% 9.00%

-  Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
18.2 Liability recognized in the statement of financial position

Present value of retirement benefit obligation (RBO) 18.3 59,891,088        54,680,081        

Retirement benefit obligation - defined benefit plan

 set back one 

year 

 set back one 
year 

The Projected Unit Credit Method based on following significant assumptions was used for valuation of the scheme. The
basis of recognition together with details as per actuarial valuation conducted as at June 30, 2022 are as under:
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
18.3

Balance as at July 1, 54,680,081

        

48,516,369

        

Expense recognized in profit or loss 18.4 19,765,793

        

17,985,959

        

Total remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 18.5 982,374

             

(6,582,947)

         

Benefits paid (13,197,160)

       

(2,818,600)

         

Benefits due but not yet paid 19.4 (2,340,000)

         

(2,420,700)

         

59,891,088

        

54,680,081

        

18.4 Expense recognized in profit or loss

Current service cost 15,074,643

        

14,084,738

        

Interest cost 4,691,150

          

3,901,221

          

19,765,793

        
17,985,959

        

18.5 Total remeasurements recognized in 

   other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on liability arising on

- financial assumptions 566,441
             

260,637
             

- experience adjustments 415,933
             

(6,843,584)
         

982,374
             

(6,582,947)
         

18.6

Current year

Rupees Rupees

Discount rate 1% (3,183,543)         3,620,844          
Salary growth rate 1% 3,768,227                   (3,374,901)

Prior year

Rupees Rupees

Discount rate 1% (2,948,800)
         

          3,363,396 
Salary growth rate 1% 3,512,500

          
         (3,139,415)

18.7

18.8

18.9

18.10

Sensitivity analysis

Salary increase risk: The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The
risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

 Increase / (decrease) in defined 
benefit obligation due to 

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

 Increase / (decrease) in defined 

benefit obligation due to 

Change in 

assumption

Increase in 

assumption

Decrease in 

assumption

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Change in 
assumption

Longevity risks: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the
plan level over the entire retiree population.

The gratuity scheme exposes the Holding Company to the following risks:

Movement in Retirement benefit obligation (RBO) 

    during the year

Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the defined
benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

This amount relates to the unfunded gratuity scheme for the head office staff which has been freezed since 2002, as per
the Holding Company policy.

Number of employees covered by the scheme are 733 (2021: 748).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2022 is 6 years (2021: 6 years).
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 19.1 114,997,127      38,209,984        

Accrued liabilities 67,130,038        58,053,169        

Contract liabilities 259,420,029      21,098,368        

Workers' profit participation fund 19.2 28,773,940        12,275,733        

Workers' welfare fund 24,437,816        18,611,659        

Infrastructure cess 19.3 104,121,092      73,680,135        

Payable to provident fund 458,574             394,387             

Gratuity due but not yet paid 19.4 1,950,700          2,816,200          

Withholding tax payable 16,411,396        11,251,271        

617,700,712      236,390,906      

19.1 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 90-days term.

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

19.2 Workers' profit participation fund 

Balance as at July 1, 12,275,733        4,316,249          
Allocation during the year 28 28,773,940        12,275,733        
Interest on funds utilized in business 27 299,326             70,413               

41,348,999        16,662,395        

Paid during the year (12,575,059)       (4,386,662)         

Balance as at June 30, 28,773,940        12,275,733        

19.3

On April 06, 2021, the High Court of Sindh vide order C.P.No D-3309 / 2011, summoned to encash all the bank
guarantees furnished by the petitioners. The SHC issued this order reasoning that the entire cargo being imported in the
Country routes through the Province of Sindh, and for that the Provincial Legislature thought it appropriate to impose a
certain amount of tax in the form of a cess. It is though being collected from an importer of goods; but in essence it is not
on imports; but for maintenance and development of infrastructure on imported goods. However, during the year, the
Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated September 01, 2021, suspended the order issued by SHC stating that it
suffers from constitutional and legal defects and granted the interim relief to the Holding Company and other petitioners.
The order issued by the Supreme Court of Pakistan states that the petitioners shall keep the bank guarantees already
submitted pursuant to the earlier order of SHC and shall furnish the fresh bank guarantees equivalent to the amount of
levy claimed by the Sindh Government against release of all future consignments of imported goods.

The Government of Sindh through Sindh Finance Act, 1994 provided for imposition of an infrastructure fee for the
development and maintenance of infrastructure on goods entering or leaving the Province through air or sea at prescribed
rates. The levy was challenged by the Holding Company along with other companies in the High Court of Sindh through
civil suits which were dismissed by the single judge of the High Court of Sindh through its decision in October 2003. On
appeal filed there against, the High Court of Sindh has held through an order passed in September 2008 that the levy as
imposed through the Sindh Finance Act, 1994 (amended time to time) was not valid till December 28, 2006, however,
thereafter on account of an amendment in the Sindh Finance (Amendment) Ordinance, 2006, it had become valid and is
payable by the Appellants. the Holding Company, along with other companies, filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of
Pakistan against the aforementioned order of the High Court of Sindh. The Supreme Court granted stay by passing an
interim order on January 22, 2009. The order passed by the High Court of Sindh was set aside by the Supreme Court vide
its order dated May 20, 2011. Consequently, a new petition has been filed in the High Court of Sindh. Through the interim
order passed on May 31, 2011, the High Court has ordered that for every consignment cleared after December 28, 2006,
50% of the value of infrastructure fee should be paid in cash and a bank guarantee for the remaining amount should be
submitted until the final order is passed. Refer notes 11 & 23.

The Management is confident for a favorable outcome. However, as a matter of prudence, the Holding Company has
made provision as follows:
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2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

Balance as at July 1, 73,680,135        59,795,206        
Charge for the year 34,548,641        27,802,430        

108,228,776      87,597,636        

Payments made during the year (4,107,684)         (13,917,501)       

Balance as at June 30, 104,121,092      73,680,135        

19.4 Movement in gratuity due but not yet paid

Balance as at July 1, 2,816,200          6,666,400          
Add: transfer from RBO during the year 18.3 2,340,000          2,420,700          
Less: payments made during the year (3,205,500)         (6,270,900)         

1,950,700          2,816,200          

20. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long-term finance 3,030,069          437,795             

Short-term borrowings 23,293,527        21,138,017        

26,323,596        21,575,812        

21. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Banking companies - secured

Running finance 199,352,132      428,815,076      
Cash finance 94,728,455        221,806,459      
Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM) 588,968,539      564,398,947      

21.1 883,049,126      1,215,020,482   

Related party - unsecured

Loan from ORA Sapphire Inc. 21.2 17,999,030        -                     

901,048,156      1,215,020,482

21.1

21.2

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1

2022 2021
22.1.1 Rupees Rupees

-   Lahore Electric Supply Company Limited 15,310,568        15,310,568        
-   Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 77,576,000        77,576,000        
-   Excise and Taxation Office 103,258,600      68,258,600        

Post dated cheques given to Collector of Customs as indemnity 380,853,295      306,797,578      

22.1.2

Facilities for running finance, cash finance, FIM and Murabaha are available from various banks up to Rs. 2,682 million
(2021: Rs. 2,270 million). These facilities are subject to mark-up at 3 month KIBOR plus 1% to 2.5% (2021: 3 month
KIBOR plus 1% to 2.5%) per annum payable quarterly. These are secured against various assets including first pari passu
hypothecation charge over present and future stock-in-trade, pledge of cotton, first hypothecation charge over present
and future book debts, ranking charge on the stocks and receivables of the Holding Company, plants and machinery,
equitable mortgage on various properties and personal guarantees of all the directors of the Company.

Contingencies

Letters of guarantee issued by banks on behalf of the Holding Company to:

In August 2013, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) vide its S.R.O. # 726(I)/2015 notified the sale price for sale
of natural gas at Rs. 573.28/MMBTU for captive power consumption (CPP) with immediate effect. Subsequent to the said
S.R.O., the Holding Company received gas bills at Rs. 573.28/MMBTU, being considered as CPP by the utility company.
The Holding Company, considering itself as industrial consumer paid gas charges at the rate applicable before August
2013 on the basis of the stay order obtained from the Court.

The aggregate unavailed short-term borrowing facilities amounted to Rs.1,799 million (2021: Rs.1,055 million).

This represents short term loan obtained by the Subsidiary from a related party. This loan is interest free. There is no term
of this loan and is repayable on demand. Accordingly, it has been classified as short term.
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22.1.3

22.1.4 An order dated November 11, 2020 was passed against the Holding Company by Collector of Customs, Karachi creating a
demand of Rs. 13.023 million along with a penalty of Rs. 0.5 million. the Holding Company has challenged the above order by
way of filing an appeal before the Customs Appellate Tribunal at Karachi, which is pending for final adjudication. However, a
stay order was successfully obtained from Honourable Sindh High Court on December 22, 2020 by filing Constitutional
Petition number 6618 / 2020, which is still operative.

On August 12, 2020, the SCP issued its verdict (Judgement) and held that “the levy imposed under Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess Act, 2015 (the Act) is in accordance with the Provisions of the Constitution”. The Supreme Court has also
held that “the Provisions of section 8 of the Act, which give retrospective effect to the charge and recovery of GIDC levied
from the year 2011 are also declared to be valid being within the legislative competence of the Parliament.” However, since
the Holding Company is an industrial concern and it did not pass on the burden of GIDC to its consumers prior to the GIDC
Act, 2015 (or even thereafter), management believes that the Holding Company is entitled to the exemption under the first
proviso to Section 8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015 from payment of the GIDC levied under the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC
Ordinance, 2014. As such, arrears due from the Holding Company may only include amounts levied under the GIDC Act,
2015 from the date of its commencement, i.e., May 22, 2015. 

Subsequent to the Order passed by the Honorable SCP on August 12, 2020, Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL)
submitted bills to the industry including the Holding Company claiming arrears of first instalment in deference to the said
Judgement of the SCP. As the bills of arrears were calculated for monthly instalment on the basis of entire total payable
amount from 2011 to July 2020 by charging Cess on the higher rate of tariff applicable to Captive Connections apart from the
fact that the implication of Section 8 of the said Act, 2015 was not taken into consideration whereby it was provided that the
industry, which has not collected the Cess from the Customers prior to 2015 shall not be liable to the payment of GIDC for
the said period from 2011 to 2015. During the year, a writ petition No. 42176 / 2020 was filed by All Pakistan Textile Mills
Association (APTMA) (where the Holding Company is also a party to the petition) before Honorable High Court at Lahore
against imposition of GIDC Act 2015 and the recovery of Cess from December 2011 to May 2015. Further, during the year,
SNGPL started billing for GIDC to the Holding Company against which payment was made by the Holding Company till
March 2021 based on the order issued by Honorable Lahore High Court against the aforementioned writ petition. Pursuant to
the order, Lahore High Court restrained SNGPL from charging the Cess at the higher tariff rate of Captive Connection and
directed to issue revised bill calculated at the rate applicable to industrial connection. Besides, the payment for the period
from 2011 to 2015 was also suspended in view of the implication of the said provision of law. Further, the Holding Company
made payment which is applicable to industrial consumers and for the difference between the amount charged to industrial
consumers and captive power consumers, post-dated cheques are being issued by the Holding Company in favour of
SNGPL. For the amount relating to the payment of GIDC based on the actual calculation prior to 2015, the decision was
made by the Lahore High Court on June 27, 2021 whereby it has restrained the SNGPL to collect the cess prior to 2015. 

On September 27, 2021, the Honorable Lahore High Court issued a judgment on writ petition No. 42716 / 2020 whereby it 
was concluded that all the parties to the petition (including the Holding Company) fall under the category of Industrial 
Consumers rather than Captive Power Plant and shall remain liable to the tariff applicable to Industrial Consumers.

During the year, the Holding Company filed an appeal before the Honorable High Court of Sindh on the ground that no
burden of GIDC had been passed to its customers / clients and thus the Holding Company is not liable to pay GIDC under
GIDC Act 2015. The Court granted stay order against recovery of GIDC payable by the Holding Company till the finalization
of matter by Sindh High Court. The matter is currently pending in the Sindh High Court. However, as a matter of abundant
caution and without prejudice to the suits filed, the Holding Company has made aggregate provision of Rs. 5.4 million (2021:
Rs. 5.4 million) in respect of GIDC up to June 30, 2022.

The Federal Government issued Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Acts in the years 2011, 2014 and 2015. All
GIDC Acts have been subject of thorough debate and consideration at honorable High Courts of the Country as well as the
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP).

From December 2015, the gas company has started supplying imported Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) resulting in the change
in rates over which no dispute has been raised by the Holding Company.

Subsequently, on September 1, 2015, OGRA vide its S.R.O. # 876(I)/2015 notified the price for sale of natural gas at Rs.
600/MMBTU for industrial consumers and on captive power consumption, with effect from September 1, 2015. Aggrieved by
the notification, the Holding Company filed a suit in the Lahore High Court contending that the mandatory procedures as laid
down in the OGRA Ordinance, 2002 and Rules made thereunder were not fulfilled while issuing the notification. Hence, the
Holding Company paid / accrued gas charges at rates applicable before the above S.R.O. # 726(I)/2015 on the basis of stay
orders obtained from Lahore High Court, Multan bench, from time to time, until November 2015.

On July 6, 2020, the OGRA issued a decision whereby, the Holding Company (the petitioner) was directed to pay the
outstanding amount to the utility company within 30 day period from the date of decision. In response to the above decision, a
writ petition was filed before the honourable Lahore High Court (LHC) by the Holding Company and the LHC issued a stay
order on October 8, 2020, which suspended the OGRA's decision, however, the case is still pending before LHC.
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2022 2021

22.2 Commitments Note Rupees Rupees

Letters of credit opened and outstanding for import of:

-   plant and machinery 665,256,522

      

599,912,927

      

-   stores and spares 30,067,092

        

8,858,225

          

-   raw material 581,096,452

      

621,274,797

      

Local bills discounted 292,314,555

      

45,115,491

        

23. REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMER - NET

Yarn

- Local 1,474,315,047

   

3,473,947,661

   

- Export 946,129,335

      

678,241,033

      

- Indirect export 3,033,819,964

   

-

                     

5,454,264,346

   

4,152,188,694

   

Raw material - Local 191,348,293
      

187,943,151
      

Waste - Local 290,228,814
      

257,032,969
      

Others 11,727,485
        

-
                     

5,947,568,938
   

4,597,164,814
   

Less:

 Sales tax (738,665,360)
     

(572,554,641)
     

 Brokerage and commission (31,004,939)       (20,805,753)       

 Discount -                     (1,321,689)         

5,177,898,639   4,002,482,731   

24. COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 24.1 3,466,763,979   2,524,452,996   

Salaries, wages and benefits 24.2 203,529,270      178,805,427      
Fuel and power 488,123,680      371,397,711      
Depreciation 4.2 93,527,805

        
81,647,853

        
Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 59,344,788

        
57,453,154

        
Packing material 62,188,408

        
56,725,436

        Insurance 10,772,496
        

9,297,989
          Repairs and maintenance 2,996,441

          
3,643,256

          Provision of slow moving stores and spares 5.1 1,368,396
          

-
                     Vehicles running and maintenance 2,696,061

          
1,437,111

          Other manufacturing overheads 3,406,336

          
4,298,757

          927,953,681

      

764,706,694

      4,394,717,660

   

3,289,159,690

   Work-in-process

  Opening stock 41,992,838

        

38,283,787

          Closing stock (56,022,198)

       

(41,992,838)

       (14,029,360)

       

(3,709,051)

         Cost of goods manufactured 4,380,688,300

   

3,285,450,639

   Finished goods

  Opening stock 106,757,831

      

145,315,502

      
  Yarn purchased 38,150,500

        

-

                     
  Closing stock (264,126,222)

     

(106,757,831)

     
(119,217,891)

     

38,557,671

        
Cost of raw material sold 106,160,346

      

144,645,643

      

Others 9,306,564

          

-

                     
4,376,937,319

   

3,468,653,953
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2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

24.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock 785,996,519

      

1,004,724,792

   

Purchases - net  3,467,791,582

   

2,305,724,723

   

4,253,788,101

   

3,310,449,515

 

Closing stock (787,024,122)

     

(785,996,519)

 

3,466,763,979

   

2,524,452,996

   

24.2

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

25. DISTRIBUTION COST 

Freight and octroi 22,231,603
        

17,617,251
        

Commission and other charges 4,059,664
          

2,538,944
          

Clearing and forwarding 4,965,937
          

4,996,039
          

Business promotion expenses 12,715,671
        

8,608,563
          

Export development surcharge 1,876,020
          

1,459,192
          

45,848,895
        

35,219,989
        

26. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 26.1 60,189,946        44,658,142        

Fees, subscription and periodicals 4,912,716          3,220,224          

Entertainment 861,579             792,305             

Traveling and conveyance 437,206             220,628             
Postage and telephone 1,429,310          1,297,724          
Electricity, gas and water 990,532             3,371,080          
Vehicles running and maintenance 8,358,167          5,699,754          
Depreciation 4.2 11,766,486        10,223,738        
Legal and professional 527,858             700,000             
Auditor's remuneration 26.2 1,541,000

          
1,073,000

          
Printing and stationery 790,177

             
528,251

             
Computer 74,520

               
173,450

             
Rest house -

                     
426,426

             Advertisement 146,900
             

102,200
             Donation 26.3 4,382,000

          
3,686,878

          Others 349,399
             

889,833
             

96,757,796
        

77,063,633
        

26.1

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

26.2 Auditor's remuneration

Audit services

Annual audit fee 950,000

             

800,000

             
Audit fee for consolidated financial statements 250,000

             

-

                     
Half year review fee 175,000

             

130,000

             
Review of code of corporate governance 55,000

               

50,000

               
Other services 55,000

               

50,000

               
Out of pocket expenses 56,000

               

43,000

               1,541,000

          

1,073,000

          

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 19.77 million (2021: Rs. 17.99 million) in respect of charge for retirement benefit
obligations.

Salaries and benefits include Rs. 1.80 million (2021: Rs. 1.50 million) in respect of charge for employer's contribution to
provident fund.
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26.3

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
27. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on long term finance 7,774,821
          

6,238,778
          

Mark-up on short-term borrowings 146,168,030
      

143,804,477
      

Interest on lease liability 1,676,785
          

5,861,753
          

Unwinding of discount on long-term finance from related parties 14.2 9,918,132
          

9,674,126
          

Workers' profit participation fund 19.2 299,326
             

70,413
               

Bank charges, guarantee commission and other related charges 8,553,167
          

5,787,333
          

174,390,261
      

171,436,880
      

28. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' profit participation fund 19.2 28,773,940        12,275,733        

Workers' welfare fund 5,826,157          4,429,453          

Infrastructure cess 19.3 30,440,957        13,884,929        

Loss on modification of terms of financial asset 9.1 -                     20,816,370        

Exchange loss - net -                     1,232,230          

Unrealized loss on other financial assets 2,055,496          -                     

Other 1,690,603          -                     

68,787,153        52,638,715        

29. OTHER INCOME

Profit on deposits 5,521,448          3,448,187          

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,233,155          6,555,071          
Scrap sales 677,499             970,796             
Exchange gain - net 13,710,169        -                     
Other revenue 2,426,424          -                     
Unwinding of discount on other receivables 9.1 6,401,253          14,415,117        
Contract settlement 29.1 109,999,076      -                     

139,969,024      25,389,171        

29.1

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

30. TAXATION

Current

- for the year 30.3 125,193,345
      

56,722,427
        - prior year (1,377,511)

         
349,304

             
123,815,834

      
57,071,731

        
Deferred 17 (3,969,918)

         
5,985,904

          
119,845,916

      
63,057,635

        

During the year, certain suppliers defaulted on the cotton supply contract due to increase in cotton prices in the
international market whereas the contracts were made at a significantly lower price. Upon such default, the Holding
Company negotiated with the suppliers and as a result the suppliers agreed to pay damages to the Holding Company of
Rs. 109.99 million out of which the Holding Company has received Rs. 87.14 million till June 30, 2022.

No director or their spouse had any interest in the donees' fund. During the year, the Holding Company has donated Rs.
1.55  million (2021: Rs. 1.14 million) to The Citizens Foundation.
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2022 2021

30.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit Rupees Rupees

538,208,871

      

222,858,732

      

29% 29%

156,080,573

      

64,629,032

        

Prior year tax adjustments (1,377,511)

         

349,304

             

Permanent differences 4,147,038

          

(525,063)

            

Impact of FTR income (44,151,929)

       

(3,300,234)

         

Impact of tax credit on donations (581,060)

            

Adjustment of effective rate (12,058,147)

       

9,695,239

          

Previously unrecognized tax depreciation loss recognized in current year -

                     

(8,423,415)

         

Impact of utilisation of Minimum Tax credits under Section 113 (28,021,331)

       
-

                     

Impact of super tax 42,202,831
        

-
                     

Others 3,605,452
          

632,772
             

119,845,916
      

63,057,635
        

30.2

30.3

31.  EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

2022 2021

Profit for the year Rupees 418,362,955      159,801,097      

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
    outstanding during the year Number 19,852,800        19,852,800        

Earnings per share
Rupees / 

Share
21.07

                 
8.05

                   

2022 2021

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note Rupees Rupees

Cash and bank balances 11 18,215,039
        

8,370,748
          Short-term borrowings - banking companies 21 (883,049,126)

 
(1,215,020,482)
 

(864,834,087)
 

(1,206,649,734)
 

33.

2022 2021

Nature of transaction Note Rupees Rupees

Remuneration paid 22,969,588

        

14,121,502

        
Post employment benefits 248,100

             

248,100

             

26.1 1,778,490

          

1,501,682

          

Tax on accounting profit

Subsequent to the amendment of section 5(A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001, tax at the applicable rate shall be
imposed on every public company which derives profit for the year. However, this tax shall not apply in case of a company
which distributes at least specified percentage of after tax profits within six months of the end of the tax year in the form of
cash dividend. In 2019, the Holdin Company had obtained stay order from Sindh High Court (SHC) in respect of
application of such clause. During the year, SHC has passed an order and set aside show cause / demand notices
seeking enforcement of section 5(A).

There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss / earnings per share of the Holding Company which is based on:

This includes super tax of Rs. 42.2 million (2021: Nil) as imposed by the Finance Act 2022.

Profit before taxation

Tax rate %

Post employment contribution
 plan

Contribution to employees' 
provident fund

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors, key management personnel and post employment
contribution plan. Shareholding of related parties, long-term loans obtained from directors and associated undertakings
(and unwinding of discount thereon) and remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, directors and executives are disclosed in
note 26 and note 34 respectively. Other significant transaction with a related party is as follows:

Relationship with the Group

Key Management Personnel
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36. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES - HOLDING COMPANY

2022 2021

Total number of employees of the Company as at reporting date 771 787

Average number of employees of the Company during the year 786 769

Employee's working in Company's factory as at reporting date 733 748

Average number of employees working in Company's factory during the year 747 731

37. PROVIDENT FUND 

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per statement of financial position 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

Other financial assets 5,078,414         -                    

At amortised cost

Security deposits 3,129,361         2,887,987         

Trade debts 768,563,631     701,721,202     

Loans and advances 833,481            1,107,481         

Other receivables 27,741,677       127,664,600     

Other financial assets 129,394,620     97,094,620       

Cash and bank balances 18,215,039       8,370,748         

952,956,223     938,846,638     

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

At amortized cost

Long-term finance

- from banking companies 261,643,633     185,632,645     
- from related parties 96,739,869       88,821,737       
Lease liability 9,729,346         29,408,329       
Trade and other payables 184,536,439     99,473,740       
Unclaimed dividend 2,899,903         2,424,885         
Mark-up accrued 26,323,596       21,575,812       
Short-term borrowings 901,048,156     1,215,020,482  

1,482,920,942  1,642,357,630  

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

-  Credit risk

-  Liquidity risk

-  Market risk

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30, 2022 and 2021 respectively are as follows:

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's financial risk
management. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight responsibility, management has been made responsible for
identifying, monitoring and managing the Group's financial risk exposures. The Group has exposure to the following risks
from its use of financial instruments:

At fair value through profit or loss

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.
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39.1

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

Security deposits 3,129,361

         

2,887,987

         

Trade debts 39.1.1 768,563,631

     
701,721,202

     

Loans and advances 39.1.2 833,481
            

1,107,481
         

Other receivables 27,741,677
       

127,664,600
     

Other financial assets 39.1.3 129,394,620
     

97,094,620
       

Bank balances 39.1.3 16,863,340
       

6,609,457
         

946,526,110
     

937,085,347
     

39.1.1

39.1.2

39.1.3

Bank Name Rating Agency Short term Long term

HAB Bank Un-rated - - -
PACRA A1+ AA+

VIS A1 AA

VIS A1+ AA

PACRA A1+ AA+

PACRA A1+ AA+

PACRA A1 A

PACRA A1+ AAA

VIS A2 A-

PACRA A1 A+

VIS A1 A+

VIS A1+ AAA

PACRA A1+ AA-

VIS A1+ AAA

PACRA A1+ AAA

PACRA A1+ AA-

PACRA A1+ AA+Askari 25-Jun-22

Habib Bank Limited 29-Jun-22

Bank Al-Habib Limited 25-Jun-22

Soneri Bank Limited 25-Jun-22

Sindh Bank Limited 28-Jun-22

Meezan Bank Limited 29-Jun-22

J.S Bank Limited 23-Jun-22

National Bank of Pakistan 25-Jun-22

Silk bank Limited 23-Dec-21

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 24-Jun-22

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 25-Jun-22

The Bank of Punjab 18-Jun-22

MCB Islamic Bank Limited 23-Jun-22

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a
number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in
similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause
their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

Credit risk

Trade debts

Credit risk of the Group arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, other financial assets, other
receivables and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

29-Jun-22

Date of Rating

Bank Al-Falah Limited 25-Jun-22

Samba Bank Limited 30-Jun-22

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

The trade debts at year end are due from local and foreign customers against local sales and export sales respectively.
Trade debt due from foreign customers are secured against letter of credit. For local customers management assesses
the credit quality of customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The Group has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The Group establishes an allowance for
impairment that represents lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) based on analysis of recovery pattern and adjustment of
trade debts secured against letter of credits.

Loans and advances

These include loans and advances given primarily to employees against salaries, which will be adjusted against their future
salaries or in case of resignation against their post retirement benefit balances.

Other financial assets and balances with banks

The Group deposits its funds and invests in term deposit receipts (other financial assets) with banks carrying good credit
standings assessed by reputable credit agencies. These banks are credit rated as follows:
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39.2

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments:

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

maturities 

 Maturity upto 

one year 

 Maturity after 

one year 

Long-term finance

  - from related parties 96,739,869 112,635,598 55,278,076 57,357,522 

  - from banking company 261,643,633 352,235,937 110,862,576 241,373,361 

Lease liability 9,729,346 10,661,050 - 8,317,563 2,343,488 

Trade and other payables 184,536,439 184,536,439 184,536,439 - 

Unclaimed dividend 2,899,903 2,899,903 2,899,903 - 

Markup accrued 26,323,596 26,323,596 26,323,596 - 

Short-term borrowings 901,048,156 901,048,156 901,048,156 - 

1,482,920,942 1,590,340,679 - 1,289,266,309 - 301,074,370 

 Carrying 
amount 

 Contractual 
maturities 

 Maturity upto 
one year 

 Maturity after 
one year 

Long-term financing

  - from related parties 88,821,737       118,113,823     14,894,598       103,219,225     

  - from banking company 185,632,645     195,592,540     96,071,779       99,520,761       

Lease liability 29,408,329       31,782,586       21,113,822       10,668,764       

Trade and other payables 99,473,740       99,473,740       99,473,740       -                    

Unclaimed dividend 2,424,885         2,424,885         2,424,885         -                    

Markup accrued 21,575,812       21,575,812       21,575,812       -                    

Short-term borrowings 1,215,020,482 1,215,020,482 1,215,020,482 -                    

1,642,357,630 1,683,983,868 - 1,470,575,118 213,408,750     

39.3

39.3.1

2022

2021

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Group could
be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or would have difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group's reputation. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances and availability of financing through banking arrangements. 

Liquidity risk

------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------

Interest rate risk

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as share price, foreign exchange rates and interest rates will
affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Group is primarily exposed to interest
rate risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
the Group’s long-term financing, short-term borrowings, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, other financial
assets and bank balances in saving account.
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2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets - at amortised cost       129,394,620         97,094,620 

Financial liabilities - at amortised cost       287,628,199       152,558,140 

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets - at amortised cost 86,100

              

107,534

            

Financial liabilities - at amortised cost 963,533,775

 

1,277,503,316

 

39.3.2

June 30, 2022
USD EURO Total

308,726,383     -                    308,726,383     

June 30, 2021

83,606,403
       

-
                    

83,606,403
       

Average rate Reporting date rate
2022 2021 2022 2021

USD 177.65 158.05 203.9/206.7 157.8/158.3
Euro 199.61 188.42 214.5/216.5 188.12/188.71

39.4

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend to the shareholders or issue bonus / new shares.

The objective of the group entities when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base
to support the sustained development of its businesses.

A change of 50 basis points in KIBOR based financial liabilities at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased)
equity and profit before tax by Rs. 4.82 million (2021: Rs. 6.39 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables
remain constant.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

At the reporting date the interest rate risk profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments is:

Carrying Amount

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions with foreign undertakings and 
bank balances in foreign currency. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore,
a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Currency risk

Trade debts

At June 30, 2022, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar and Euro with all other
variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 15.4 million (2021: Rs. 4.18
million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US Dollar and Euro - denominated trade
debts and trade payables.

----------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------

Capital risk management

Trade debts
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40. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

-   

-   

-   

As at June 30, 2022 the Group held the following instruments at fair values:

Level 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Total

Equity securities - listed           5,078,414                       -                         -             5,078,414 

Level 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Total

Equity securities - listed                       -                         -                         -                         -   

40.1

41. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on 5 October 2022 by the Board of Directors.

There are no other assets or liabilities to classify under above levels except the Group's land, mill building, labour colony,
plant and machinery, electric installations and factory equipment are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair value at the
date of revaluation, less subsequent depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. The fair value
measurements of these assets carried out as at June 30, 2021, were performed by Tristar International Consultant (Pvt.)
Ltd. not related to the Group. The valuer is listed on panel of Pakistan Banks Association and they have appropriate
qualification and experience in the fair value measurement of properties, plant and machinery. Value determined by
independent valuer is classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

There are no transfers between the levels during the year.

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

               either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

The Group discloses the financial instruments measured in the balance sheet at fair value in accordance with the
following fair value hierarchy:

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arms length transaction.

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------

Fair value

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

Fair value

------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------
Financial assets 

measured at fair 

Financial assets 

measured at fair 
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As on June 30, 2022
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3,227               

84,566
             

354,425

           

293,231

           

37,950

             

126,025

           

68,250

             

88,090

             

55,743

             

64,900

             

59,948

             

71,500

             

218,000

           

123,750

           

130,350
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250,003

           

586,507

           

1,442,039

       

4,332,557

       

5,525,643

       

5,754,596

       

19,852,800
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CATEGORIES OF NUMBER OF SHARES

SHARE HOLDERS SHARE HOLDERS HELD

Associated Companies, Undertaking 02 19,150

                   

0.096

                                       

and Related Parties

Directors, CFO & their Spouse and

Minor Children 08

Mr. S. M. Idrees Allawala 550

                         

0.003

                                       

Mr. S. M. Mansoor Allawala 4,332,557

             

21.823

                                     

Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala 5,775,646

             

29.092

                                     

Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 5,754,596

             

28.986

                                     

Mr. Muhammad Israil 2,200

                     

0.011

                                       

Syed Masud Arif 500

                         

0.003

                                       

Miss. Azra Yaqub Vawda 500

                         

0.003

                                       

Mrs. Ambreen Mansoor W/o S. M. Mansoor Allawala 1,442,039

             

7.264

                                       

Executive - 17,308,588

           

Joint Stock Companies 7 2,531

                  

0.013

                                   

NIT & ICP -

Others 1 550

                      

0.003

                                   -
                                     

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, 04 186,340
              

0.939
                                   

Non-Banking Finance Institutions, Insurance

Companies, Modarabas & Mutual Funds

Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest

Mr. S. M. Mansoor Allawala 4,332,557

             

21.823

                                     

Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala 5,775,646

             

29.092

                                     

Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 5,754,596

             

28.986

                                     

Mrs. Ambreen Mansoor W/o S. M. Mansoor Allawala 1,442,039

             

7.264

                                       

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS NUMBER SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE

Associated Companies, Undertaking, and Related Parties -

                           

-

Directors, CFO & their Spouse & Minor Children 10 17,308,588

           

87.185

                                     

Joint Stock Companies 07 2,531

                     

0.013

                                       

Bank, Development Finance Institutions 04 186,340

                 

0.939

                                       

Insurance Companies, Modarabas

Individuals 1,388 2,355,341

             

11.864

                                     

Others 01

1,410 19,852,800

           

100.00

                                     

PERCENTAGE

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As on June 30, 2022
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FORM OF PROXY 

The Secretary 

IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LTD.

Ismail Centre, 1st Floor, 

6-C, Central Commercial Area,

Bahadurabad, Karachi - 74800

I/We

of 

being a member of Idrees Textile Mills Ltd. hereby appoint

of 

or failing

of 

As witness my hand this of 2022

Signed by the said in the presence of 

1. Witness: 

Signature

Name:

Address

2. Witness: 

Signature

Name:

Address

 

Shareholder’s Folio No.

CDC Participants I.D./Sub A/C #

CNIC No.

(Important: This form of Proxy, duly completed and signed across a Rs. 5/-revenue 

stamp, must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office not less than 48

hours before the time for holding the meeting).

As my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf

at the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on

Thursday October 27, 2022 and at any adjournment thereof. 

Signature on 

Five Rupees

Revenue Stamp

Signature of Member 
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